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Elpro Internationa¥ Ltd. _ : : ' : N AGM NOTICE

NOTICE OF THE 46™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 46" Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Tuesday 29" Day of September 2009,
at 11.30 a.m. at Walchand Hirachand Hall, Indlan Merchant’s Chamber Churchgate, Mumbal 400020 to transact the
following business:

Ordmary Business:

1.

To consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet of the company as at 31 March, 2009 and Profit and Loss
account for the year ended on that date and the Report of the Audttors and Directors’ thereon

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ft K Dabriwala, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for
reappointment.

To appoint a Director in piace of Mr. Narayan T. Atal, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re;appointment. ‘

To appoint M/s Price Waterhouse, Chartered Accountants, as the auditors of the company to hold office from
the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of next Annual General Meeting and authorize
the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

Spectal Business:

5.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the followmg resolutlon as an Ordlnary
Resolution:

* “RESOLVED THAT Mr. Anil Poddar who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company effective

November 17, 2008 under Articles of Association of the Company and who holds office under Section 260
of the Companies Act, 1956, upto the date of this Annual General Meeting be and hereby appointed as a
Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation.” . -

By Order of the Board of Directors

Mumbai _ , : Anil Poddar

Place :
Dated : 30" June, 2009 ' ‘ ‘ Director
Notes: _
a. A member entitled to attend and vote instead of himself and proxy need not be a member. In order to

hecome valid, the proxy forms should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less
than 48 hours hefore the time fixed for holding the meeting.

1

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of the Specral

: Busrness is annexed hereto.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from 25"‘ September, 2009
to 29t September, 2009 (both days inclusive).

. Pursuant to provisions of Section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956, as amended, the unpaid dividends for

the Financial Year 2001-2002 and thereafter which remain unpaid / unclaimed for a period of seven years
shall be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund constituted in terms of Sectlon 205C of
the Companies Act,1956. :

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify immediately any change in their address -
to the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents M/s. Sharex Dynamic (India) Private Limited,
Unit No. 1, Luthra Industrial Premises, Safed Pool, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East),
Mumbai - 400072. Members holding shares in electronic form may intimate any such changes to their
respective Depository Participants (DPs).
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACTS, 1956
Hem No. 5:

Mr. Anil Poddar was appointed as anh additional director of the company by the Board of Directors on 17* November, 2008
to hold office upto the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. He is presently director in one other company.

The company has received notice under Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956 from a member of the Company
~ proposing his candidature as a director of the company liable to retire by rotation in terms of the Articles of
Association of the Company. ‘

Excépt Mr. Anil Poddar, None of the Directors of the Company is concerned or interested in the resolution.
By Order of the Board of Directors

Place: Mumbai _ - Anil Poddar
Date: 30" June, 2009 _ Director
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b i

PARTICULARS OF DIHECTOFIS IN TERMS OF LISTING AGREEMENT:

Mr. B. K. Dabrlwala

‘ Harvard alumni holdlng several senior management positions. He is holdlng directorship in foIIowmg Companies:-

Name of the Company Particulars of position held
Elpro International Limited ‘ ' Director
International Conveyors limited - Director
International Belting Limited ) .- Director
LG.E. (India) Limited Director
Faridabad Investment Company Limited Director
Dabri Properties & Trading Company Limited Director
R.C.A. Limited Director
GE Power Services (India) Pvt. Ltd. " Director
Faridabad Capital Holding Pvt. Ltd. Director

Mr. R. K. Choudhury

Mr. Choudhury is an Advocate with over 49 years of experience and is a senior consultant of M/s Khaltan & Co.,
Advocates, Kolkata & Mumbai . He is holding directorship in following Companies:-

Name of the Company Particutars of position held’
Academic Foundation & Publication Pwvt. Ltd. ~ Director

Balrampur Chini Mills Lid. ' " Director

Digjam Lid. " Director

Elpro International Limited. Director

Khaitan Consultants Limited. ' Director .
Lynx Machinery & Commercial Limited Director

Puja Corporation Limited. Director
- Puja Art Archive Limited. | - Director

Reliance Bengal Industries Limited. Director

Rajratan impex Pvt. Ltd. Director

RKDK Publisher Pvt. Ltd, Director

Suryakiran Apartment Services Pvt. Lid. " Director

Super Diamond Nirmal Limited - Director .

Travel Hub Pvt. Limited. Director

Upper Ganges Sugar & Industries Lid. - Director

Concrete Builder Pvt. Lid. . Director

Maxgrow Merchandise Pvt Ld. Director

Mr Sharat Anand

Mr Sharat Anand has a Master's degree in Business Administration from Delhi University and thereafter attended
the GBC Programme conducted by London Business School, UK and has over 22 years of experience as an
International Banker with extensive assignments overseas and in India and he was a Deputy CEO.and Country
Treasurer for a considerable period in foreign banks in India.
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Elpro International Ltd.

Place

Mr. Narayan T. Atal

Mr. Narayan T. Atal is a Chartered Accountant. He has over 25 years experience in Chartered Accountants
practice. He is holding directorship in following companies.

Name of the Company g - - Particulars of position held
Gama Leafin Pvt. Lid. Director

The Pratap Co Operative Bank Ltd. ' Director

Elpro Estates Limited . Director

Elpro International Limited : ' Director

Ajcan Global Services Lid. Director.

Shree Madhu Industrial Estate Lfd. ' Director

Mr. Anil Poddar

Mr. Anil Poddar was appointed as an additional director of the company by the Board of Director on 17.11.2008
to hold office up to the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting.He is holding directorship in follow:ng companies.

Name of the Company Particulars of position held
Elpro Estates Limited - Director
Elpro International Limited _ . Director

Mr. Surbhit Dabriwala

Mr. Surbhit Dabriwala is a Bachelor of Arts and Science (1998) from University of Pennsylvania, of the Wharton -
School of Fame, a leading league Institution. He is presently holding directorship in following Compames -

Name of the Company N Particulars of position held
Elpro International Limited Director

First Apartments Private Limited Director

Faridabad Investment Company Limited " Director

Dabri Properties & Trading Company Limited_ Director

Metiife India Insurance Company limited Director

Faridabad Capital Holding Pvt. Ltd. . Director '

By Order of the Board of Directors

: Mumbai 3 _ Anil Poddar

Dated : 30" June, 2009 . . Director




Elpro International Ltd. B - DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Shateholders,

The Directors present the 46" Annual Report together with the audited balance-sheet and profit and Ioss account
for the year ended March 31, 20089.

1. Financial Results ' : o {Rs.in Lacs}
Particulars , ‘ . ) © Year ended Year ended
31.03.2009 - 31.03.2008
Gross sales & services ‘ ' - -1303 2,967
Other Income ‘ : 68 183
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax and Exceptional Hems - (1469) ~(1,845)
Provisioh for Taxation | | L ~ . -
MAT Credit 4
Provision for Deferred Tax ' - : (136)
Fringe Benefit Tax _ 3 | 6
Reversal of provision for diminution in value of investments (1192) -
Provision for diminution in value of investments ' . - 5
Profit/{(Loss) After Tax ' ' : - (284) (1,715)
Profit brought forward from previous year 3 ‘ (1370) 345
Profit available for appropriation D|V|dend Proposed . (1654) (1,370)

Dividend-Proposed - -
Dividend tax on proposed dividend . : - -
Transfer to General reserve : S - ‘ -
Balance carried to Balance Sheet ’ . (1654) -(1,370)

. 2. Operations:

The top-line during the year stood at Rs.1303 Lacs as compared to Rs 2 967 Lacs in the previous year
The decrease in top-line is due to consolidation & slowdown in company’s core manufacturing division and
also due to margin pressure the company has suspended to take orders from Electricity Boards The Company
has started construction activities in full swing and from next financial year the revenue from its real estate
division shall start reflecting in the top line.

3. Dividend:

. : - 1 .
Due to loss in current year, your Directors have not recommended any dividend.

4. Subsidiary & Consolidated Financial Statement: ] , :
"The Consolidated Financial Statement and report thereon prepared with subsidiary Elpro Estates Limited
and associates Dabri Properties and Trading Company Limited forms part of the Financial Statement.

5. Directors: l

In aécordance with Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. R.K. Dabriwala & Mr Narayan T. Atal. retire
by rotation as Directors at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and are eligible for re-appointment. .

6. Auditors:

The auditors M/s. Prlce Waterhouse, Chartered Accountants retire at the conclusion of the ensuing
;" Annual General Meeting and are eligible for re-appointment. The Audit Committee of the Board
. recommends the re-appointment of M/s. Price Waterhouse, as Auditors for a further period of one year.

“—/
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7. Personnel:

None of the employees of the Company employed throughout the year were in receipt of remuneration of

Rs.24,00,000/- or more per annum or employed for part of the year were in receipt of Rs.2,00,000/- or more

per month. : : : ' '
8. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption:

a) Conservation of Energy

During the year under review, 'the energy consumption was. 422610(including 14112 own generation
through DG) KWH in units as against 1619295 {including 107520 own generation through DG) KWH in
the previous year. Steps taken for energy conservation, inter alia, include the following:

Maintaining the power factor to unity in spite of variable load.

b) Technology Absorption:
Not Applicable.

9. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: :
Earning and outgo in foreign exchange duri'n'g the year under review were Rs.266.09 Lacs and Rs.1.24
as against Rs. 696.12 Lacs and Rs. 15.65 Lacs respectively in the previous year. -

10. Directors Responsibility Statement: _ . |
As required under Section 217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956, it is hereby stated t_hét:

" d} in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures; & :

'b) we have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and
- eslimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period;

c) we have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and cther irregularities; and ST

d) We have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

11. Code of Corporate Governance: ]
' In terms of clause 49 of the Listing agreement with Stock Exchanges, a separate report on Corporate
Governance along with the auditors’ statement thereon is attached hereto.
12. Management Discussion and Analysis: ‘
The Annual Report also contains a separate section on the Management Discussion and Analysis, which is
_a:part of the Director's Report. ‘ :
13. Industrial relations:
Employee relations were by and large satisfactory. No man days were lost due to strike, lock out etc.

14. Acknowledgements: , _
Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the assistance and support extended by

.

- Customers, Employees, Banks, Governments, Vendors, Shareholders and others associated with the activities
of the Company and look forward to their continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place : Mumbai ' ‘ R. K. Dabriwala
Dated : 30" June, 2009 - Chairman
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

1.

Industry Structure and Development:

The Company is largely dependent on the performance of its real estate activities which experienced severe
slow down in the recent past due to global slow down and also due to deep corrections in domestic economy
and with regard. to it's core manufacturing activities the demand situation has not |mproved considerably
which is affecting the activity of the Company. '

Opportunity & Threats:
Real estate sector has passed through the corrections and in future real estate & allied services shall
provide opportunity for better performance of the Company.

Segment wise performance

The Company is continuing it's efforts to penetrate export market and good amount of export orders have
been executed during the year, the real estate activities have advanced considerably during the year and
will continue to be advanced with faster rate in the coming years.

Risks & Concerns and Outliook:

~ Your Company continues it's efforts to produce good quality products at lower cost by taking all steps to

retain the market share.

Internal control system & its adequacy:

Company has adequate internal control system for sateguardlng assets of the Company and preventlng
them from unauthorized use or disposition. However the management is being regutarly guided by the
Audit Committee, which reviews the systems. The Company has been taking steps for further strengthening
of controls.

Human resource and Industrial relations
Employee relations were by and large satisfactory.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this "Management discussion and analysis report” describing the Company s projections,
estimates, expectations or predictions may constitute “forward looking statements” within the meaning
of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results mlght differ materially from those either expressed
or implied.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1} Company’s Philosophy:

Your Company has béén following philosophy of good govemance policies with transparency to meet its
obligation to all stakeholders in balanced and accountable manner.

2) Board of Directors:
a} Composition of Board:

There are presently six Dlrectors on the Board of the Company of which two are Promoter Directors and
four are Non-Executive Independent Directors.”

b} Attendance of each Director at Board Meetings and at last Annual General Mesting:

Name of Director Category Status | No. of Board Meetings Attendance at the
. ' : _ attended last AGM
Mr. R. K. Dabriwala Promoter NED ) 4 Present
Mr. R. K. 'Choudhury Independent NED 4 ' Not Present
Mr. R. A. Redkar | Independent NED 6** Present -
Mr. Narayan T. Atal Independent - NED 9 ' Present -
" Mr. S. Dabriwala Promoter NED ' 8 Present
Mr. Sharat Anand independent NED . 4 Present .
Mr. Anil Poddar Independent NED 2

NED - Non Executive Director

ED - Executive Director ‘

*Appointed as an additional director on 17" November, 2008
**Resignation approved on 17* November, 2008

¢) Number of other Companies and Committees, the Director of the Company is a Director/
Member/Chairman:

Name of Director Number of Other Board Committees
Directorship @ ) Member Chairman .

Mr. R. K. DabriWala 8 ‘None - None
Mr. R. K. Choudhury 16 None , 4

Mr. Narayan T. Atal 5 None None
Mr. S. Dabriwala 5 | None None
Mr. Sharat Anand - None None None
Mr. Anil Poddar | 1 1 None

@ includes private limited companies
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Contd.)

d) Details of Board Meeting held during 1# April, 2008 to 31¢ March, 2009

Sr. h:io. ~ Date

T

28" April, 2008

12" May, 2008

30" June, 2008

31t July, 2008

29" September, 2008 °

319 Ocicber, 2608

17" November, 2008

15" December, 2008

o |lo|~w|la|loa|ls|w|n]|=

31¢ January, 2009

e) Number of shares held by Non-Executive Directors as at 31* March, 2009:

Name of the Directors | No. of Shares \ - '

. M. R. K. Dabriwala

84,259

3) Audit Committee:

a) Composition, No. of Meetings and Attendance:

The Audit Commitiee of the. Company comprised of four Independent, Non-Executive Directors.
The Audit Committee meetings were held on April, 2008, June, 2008, July, 2008, October, 2008 and
January, 2009. The details of attendance are stated below:

Name of the Director

No. of Meetings

Mr. Narayan T. Atal

5 , ' | 5

Mr. R. A. Redkar

. 4**

Mr. Sharat Anand

2 _ o

Mr.-R. K. Choudhury

2

Mr. Anil Poddar

*Resigned from the Committee w .. f. 17" November, 2008.
*Appointed on 17" November, 2008

_“The senior officials of the Company and representatwe of Auditors were mwtees to the meetings of the

Audit Committee.

b) “Terms of Reference:

The terms of reference of this Commlttee are wide enough covering the matters specified under the

- Listing Agreement

c) Secretary:

The Gompany did not have a qualified company secretary during the year.

d) Subsidiary Company:

The minutes of the Board Meeting and Financial Statement of Elpro Estates Limited was penodlcally

placed before the Board.
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4) Remuneration Committee:
a) Composition:

The Remuneration Commlttee comprised of three Independent Non-Executive Dlrectors

b) No. of Meetlngs and Attendance:
There was no meeting of the Remuneration Commlttee heid durlng the year.

c) .Terms of Heference

The terms of reference of this Committee are wide enough covering the matters specified under the
Listing Agreement

d) Remuneration of Dlrectors

The remuneration payable 1o the Whole-Time Director is recommended by the Ftemuneratlon Committee
~and then approved by the Board of Directors & members at the General Meeting of the Company.
Remuneration to the Whole-Time Director consists”of fixed salary and perquisites.

Details of remuneration paid to the Whole-Time Director for the period 01.04.2008 to 31.03.2009

Name of Director - Salary & Allowances Perquisites Terms of appointment

'Mr. Surbhit Dabriwala 822000 Nil 26 months
: : from 01.10.2007 to 30.11.2009

Notes:
1. Company does not have a stock option scheme. '
2. There is no notice period and no severance fees are payable by the Compahy.
3. The whole-time director is also entitled to a commission of 1 % of net profits of the Company.
4. Mr. Surbhlt Dabriwala has resigned from the post of Whole Time Director of the Company .

However he is continuing as a Non- Executive Director in the Company with effect from 20- 04- 2009.

e) Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors consists of elttlng fees:
o Payments for the period 01.04.2008 to 31.03.2009 (Amount in Rupees)

“Name of Director | sitting Fees
Mr. R. K. Dabriwala : 17,000
Mr. R. K. Choudhury 12,750
Mr. R. A. Rediar . 25,500
Mr. Sharat Anand : 17,000
Mr. Narayan T. Atal : 29,750
Mr. Anil Poddar - 8,500

5) Shareholders/investors’ Grieyances Committee:
a) Composition: '

Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committee compnses of Mr. Anil Poddar, Mr Surbhit Dabriwala
and Mr. Narayan T. Atal as members of the Committe€. The Committee meets to approve fransfer,

" transmission, consolidation, sub-division, issue of duplicate Share Certificates, request for
dematerialization of the Company’s shares, redressing of investors’ complaints, etc. During the year
under report, 24 meetings were held.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Contd.)

b) Compliance officer:
Mr. Sambhaw Jain - CFO & Compliance Officer w.e.f. 15.02.2008
¢) Complaints:

26 Complaints were received and resolved during the year under review. There is no claim pending to
be resolved as at 31-03-2009. .

d) Pending share transfer:

The number of share transfers received during the year under review and which are periding are Nil.

6) General Body Meetings:

a) The last three: Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under:

Financial Year Date . Time Venue
2005-2006 25.09.2006 11:30 A M Waichand Hirachand Hall, Indian
: Merchants’ Chambers, Mumbai
2006-2007 29.09.2007 03:30P. M Walchand Hirachand Hall, Indian
' . Merchants’ Charn'bers, Mumbai
2007-2008 .29.09.2008 03:00P.M Walchand Hirachand Hail, Indian
' ‘ : Merchants' Chambers, Mumbai

b) Vote by Postal Ballot:

During the year, five resolutions were passed by way of postal ballot process.

7} Disclosures regarding materially significant related party transactions:

Transactions of purchase of services, inter- corporate deposits, investments, etc. are entered with related
* parties. Further, remuneration is paid to directors. Full disclosures as per Accounting Standard 18 issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India on related party transactions, is given in the Annual Accounts.

Disclosures regarding certain non-compliance:

There were no instances of non-compiiance or penalty, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock

Exchanges or SEBI or any Statutory Authérity on any matter related to capital markets during the last
three years.

-8)" Means of Communication:

Half yeafly report sent to eéch household No, as the resulis 'of the Company are
of shareholders published in the newspaper every quarter
Quarterly results published in the newspaper Yes

Free Press Journal- Mumbai Edition
Navshakti- Mumbai Edition

Any website, where results or official news www.corpfilling .org
are displayed )

The presentation made to the Institutional No such presentation have been made
Investors or to the Analysts _

Whether Management Discussions & : Yes Management Discussions & Analysis is
Analysis is part of Annual report or not part of Annual report. -

.
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Annual Report 2008-2009

9) General Shareholder Information:
AGM : Date, Time and Venue
Financial Calendar (Tentative) 2009-2010

Book Closure Date

Transfer of unclaimed amount to Investor

Education and Protection Fund

Listing at Stock Exchanges

Stock Code-Physical o
ISIN Number for NSDL & CDSL

Market Price Data: 'High Low during each
month in the last fmanmal year

Stock Performance

Registrar and Transfer Agents
. Share Transfer System

Distribution of Shareholding and Shareholding

Pattern as on 31.03.2009
Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

'Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any
Convertible Instruments, conversion date
and likely impact on-equity

- Plant Location

Address for correspondence

29-09-2009 At 11.30 p.m. at Mumbai
First Quarter Results-last week of July’ 2009
Half - Yearly Results-last week of October' 2009 .

* Third Quarter Results-last week of'JanL_Jary’ 2010

Results for the year ending on 31* March-last week
of June’ 10

25" September, 2009 to 29 September, 2009

- (Both days inclusive)

During the year under review, the Company has
credited a sum of Rs.114021 to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund under the Investor Education’ and
Protection Fund (Awareness and Protection of

~ Investors) Rules, 2001

Bombay Stock Exchange le:ted Mumbal

" Pune Stock Exchange Limited, Pune

The Company has paid the listing fees for the period
1 st April, 2009 to 31st March, 2010

504000 on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai

' INE579801013 '

Please see Annexure A

The performance of Compény;s s_héres relative to the
BSE Sensex is given in Annexure B

Sharex Dynamic (India) Private Limited

All the transfers recelved are processed by Reg:strar
and Transfer Agents and approved by the
Shareholders' / Investors’ Grievances Committee of
the Company

Please See Annexure C

85.80 % of paid up capital has been dematerialized
as on 31st March, 2009

-Company has allotted 11,00,000 convertible warrants
- 1o foreign institutional investors convertible into

equivalent number of shares at a price of Rs. 611/-

_per warrants. The company has allotted 775000

shares upon receipt of 100% consideration till -
30-06-2009, balance 325000 warrants yet to be.
converted.

The Company's plants were Iocated at Pune

_'Regd. Office: _
“NIRMAL” 17th Floor,

Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021
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10) Non Mandatory Requirements: .
Chairman of the Board-Re: Non-executive Chairman.
The Company has a non-executive Chairman.

s

Annexure - A
Stock Market Data - Monthly high and low data in the last financial year at BSE

Month High - Low
_ April - 08 . 720.90 603.00
May — 08 722.65 613.00
June — 08 670.00 ‘ 507.00
Juy-08 ' 513.90 .. 406.00
Aug - 08 . $30.00 ' 445.00
Sept -08 | 590,00 " 440.10
Oct — 08 ‘ 510.00 ' 253.00
Nov — 08 " A11.15 316.00
Dec —08 383.55 . 280.35
Jan - 09 355.00 278.40
Feb-09 281.00 256.10
Mar — 09 | 282.25 | 239.25

.Annexure - B

BSE SENSEX VS ELPRO SHARE PRICE
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Annexure—C _ -
Distribution of Shareholding as on 31 March, 2009

Share of Nominal Value Members Share
' Number of | Shareholding Number of | Shareholding
Shares held % Shares held %
Upto 5000 A 2641 92.96 278126 | - 7.04
5001-10000 120 422 T 84002 213
10001-20000 44 : 1.55 60804 1.54 |
20001-30000 06 ' 0.21 14674 0.37
30001-40000 07 0.25 - 24967 0.63
40001-50000 03 0.1 14009 0.35
50001-100000 03 0.11 19978 " 0.51
100001 and above 17 | 0.60 _ 3455117 87.43
- Total ' 2841 | ' 100 3951677 ' 100
Share Holding pattern as on 31* March, 2009
Category Number of Shares held - -Shareholding %
Promoters and Promoter Group R 2336009 : . 5912
Mutual Funds & UTI : 550 o . - 0.01
Banks, Financial Institutions, ' : :
Insurance Companies : 718 : 0.02
Bodies Corporate : 427361 - 10.81
Fir's . 621128 15.72
NRI's/OCB - 14066 . : 0.36
Indian Public ' : 544045 13.77
Clearing Members ' 7600 0.19
Total _ - 3951677 . ' 100

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of
Elpro International Limited

. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Elpro International Limited, for the year
ended on 31* March, 2009, as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with the Stock
Exchanges. We have examined the comPIiance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Elpro International Limited
(‘The Company”), for the year ended 31° March, 2009, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said
Company with the stock exchanges in India. - : '

The compliance .of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur

examination was carried out in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance

(as stipulated.in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and -
was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of

the conditions of Corporate Governance. ltis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements

of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the
Company has complied witht he conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing
Agreements, ‘

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. .

Vilas Y. Rane
Partner
Membership No. F-33220

. For and on behalf of
Mumbai -~ | ' A Price Waterhouse
June 30, 2009 . Chartered Accountants

s
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of
Elpro International Limited

1)

2. .We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards generally accepted in India. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis; evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial staiements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall firancial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion. - ’

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003, as amended by the Companies '
(Auditor's Report) (Amendment) Order, 2004, (‘the Order’), issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (4A) of Section 227 of The Companies Act, 1956 of India ( ‘the Act’), and on the
basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order. -

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 above, we report that
a. We have obtained all the information and explanatlons which to the best of cur knowledge and belief

were necessary for the purposes of our audit; B
b.  Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company, so far as
appears from our exarnination of those books;
¢. The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the books of account; :
d.  Inour opinion, the Balancé Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this report comply with the accounting standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of Section 211 of the
Act; '
e. 'On the basis of the wrltten representations recelved from the dlrectors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as at March 31, 2009 from being appomted
.as a director under clause (g) of sub-section (1} of Section 274 of the Act;
f. - In.our opinion and to the best of our information and accordmg to the explanations given to us, the
- said financial statements, together with the notes thereon and attached thereto give in the prescribed
manner.the information required by the Act and give a true and fair view in conformlty with the
accounting principles: generaﬂy accepted in India: .
(i) inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31* March, 2009; .
(i) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the loss of the Company for the year ended on
: that date; and :
(i) 'inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement of the cash flows of the Company for the year ended
. on that date. :
Vilas Y. Rane
Partner :
Membership No. F-33220
: o " ° . Forand on behalf of
Mumbai - ' o : Price Waterhouse

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Elpro International Limited {‘the Company’) as at
31" March, 2009 and the related Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on -
that date, (all together referred to as the ‘financial statements’) annexed thereto, which we have signed
under reference to this report. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

June 30, 2009 . ' S L . Chartered Accountants




ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT : | ~ Annual Report 2008-2009

(Referred to in Paragraph (3) of the Audltors Report of even date to the members of
* Elpro International Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2009)

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showmg full particulars including quantltatlve details and situation
of fixed assets.

(b)" As explained to us, the Company has in place a program for conducting the physical verification of assets

in a phased manner. As per the phased- programme physical verification was not ‘due to be carried out

- during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of venflcatlon is reasonable, having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its business. :

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanatlons gwen to us, a substantlal part of fixed
assets has not been disposed off by the Company during the year.

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our oplnlon the frequency
of verification is reasonable.

(b)  Inour opinion, the procedures of physical verification of inventory.followed by the management are reasonable
and.adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

(©) On the basis of our examination of the inventory records, in our opinion, the Company is maintaining proper
records of its lnventory The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to the
book records were not materlal

(@) The Company has granted unsecured Ioans a company covered in the register maintained under Section
301 of the Act. The maximum amount involved during the year and the year- end balance of such loan
aggregates to Rs. 799.85 lacs and Rs. 7.15 lacs respectlvely

(b) Inour opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions of such loans, are not prima facie pre;udrcnal
to the interest of the Company.

{c) The principal amount is repayable on demand and there is no repayment schedule. The interest is payable
oh demand.

(d) The loan given and the interest due thereon is repayable on demand and therefore question of overdue
payment does not arlse

(e} The Company has taken unsecured loan from a company covered in the register maintained under Sectlon
301 of the Act. The maximum amount involved during the year and the year —end-balance of such loan
aggregates to Rs. 361.78 lacs and Rs. 14.32 lacs respectively.

(f) - In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions of loans are not prima fame prejudicial to
the interest of the Company. :

{g9) In respect of the aforesaid Ioans the Company is regular in repaymg the principal amounts as stlpulated
~ and has been regular in the payment of interest. :

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations grven {o us, and having regard to the explanatlon
that certain items purchased are of a special nature for which suitable alternative sources do not exist for obtaining
comparative quotations, there is an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company
and the nature of its business, for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and
services. Further, on the basis of our examination of the books and records of the Company, and according to the
information and explanataons given to us, we have neither come across nor have been informed of any contlnumg
failure to correct major weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control system ' -

(@) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the disclosure of
interest made by the directors of the Company, the particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to in
Section 301 of the Act have been entered into the register required to be maintained under to that Section.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations glven 1o us, the transactions made in

- pursuance of such contracts or arrangements and exceeding the value of Rupees Five lacs in respect of

any party during the year have been made at prices which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing
market prices at the relevant time

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 58A and 58AA of
the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 4 {vi) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and nature of its business.




Elpro International Lid.

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

- 8. The Company has been advised that the Central Government has prescribed the maintenance of cost records
under clause (d) of sub-section (1) of Section 209 of the Companies Act, 1956 for generation of Electricity from
wind power and for Varistors and Magnets for automotive parts and accessories, manufactured by the Company,
for which, in our opinicn, ptima facie the prescribed accounts and records are being maintained, in so far as it
relates to Varistors. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information given to us, the Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under clause {d) of sub-section (1) of Section
209 of the Companies ‘Act, 1956 for any other products manufactured by the Company.

9. (a) According o the infermation and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined by us, the
: Company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authotities ,undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, investor's education and protection fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
sales tax, service tax, wealth tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable
with the appropriate authorities during the year and there were no such outstanding dues as at
31*March, 2009 for a period exceeding six months from the date they became payable except sa!es tax

dues of Rs 1.78 lacs .

{b) According to the mformation and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined by us, the
particulars of excise duty, service tax, sales tax and income tax, which have not been deposited on account
of dispute are as below:

_ _ (Rs. in lacs)
Nature of the statute Nature of Amount Period to which Forum where dispute is

Dues under dispute | the amount relates | pending
& unpaid
The Central Excise Act, 1944 ' 1.00 1990-91 to 93-94 High Colirt-Mumbai
: 010 . 2001-02 Commissioner Central excise
Excise Duty : (Appeals), Hyderabad
6.42 2001-02 to 2002-03 | Joint Commissioner -
Central excise
223 - 2003-04 The Supreme Court of India.

The Central Exdise Act, 1944 | Service Tax 4.75 2002-03 to 2004-05 | Deputy Commissioner -

’ ' , Central Excise
Bombay Sales Tax Act, 1959 | Sales Tax 8.97 1899-00 to 2003-04 | Deputy Commissioner,

: ' _ Sales Tax
Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 6.90 1995-96 to 2001-02 | Deputy Commissioner of
o Appellate Tribunal , Hyderabad

Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 2.31 1998-99 to 1999-00 | Deputy Commissioner of

] : Appellate Tribunal , Hyderabad
Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 15.91 2004-2005 Deputy Appellate Commissioner

‘ ) ' (CT), Hyderabad.
Income Tax Act, 1961 _ 12.51 1998-99 Income Tax Appellate, Tribunal
Income Tax Act, 1961 ' N 13.68 2000-01 Income Tax Appellate, Tribunal
Income Tax Act, 1961 . 8.60 2003-04 Commissioner of Income Tax —
, _ Appeals

Total - 83.38

10. The Company has accumulated losses which are less than fifty percent of its net worth as at the year end .
The Company has incurred cash losses during the flnanmal year ended on that date and in the lmmedlately
preceding financial year.

11. According to the records of the Company examined by us and on the basis of information and explanatlons given
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any Banks or financial |bst|tutlon except for delays
~ ranging from 1 to 49 days in respect of all instalments of Rs 11.30 lacs each due to a bank, delays ranging from

|

\
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12.
13.
14,

15.

16.

17.
18.

19,

20.

21..

"1 to 28 days in respect of four quarterly instalments of Rs 350 lacs each due to a bank, delays ranging from 1 to
- 62 days in respect of ten instalments of Rs 4.40 lacs each due to a bank ,delays ranging from 1-7 days lacs in

respect of ten instalments of of Rs 4.50 each due to a bank ,delay of 27 days in respect of one instalment of
Rs 200 lacs each due to a bank, delay of 7 days of Rs 400 lacs in respect of one instalments each due to a bank
and a delay of five days in respect of one instalmient of Rs. 250 lacs due to a financial institution. However the
said defaults have been made good by the Company during the year. The Company has not obtained any
borrowing by way of debentures.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares,
debentures and other securities. Accordingly, paragraph 4(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The provisions of any special statute applicable to chit fund / nidhi / mutual benefit fund/society are not-applicable.
to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 4{xiii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a dealer or
trader in shares, securities, debentures and other investments.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given any
guarantee for loans taken by others from banks or financial institutions during the year except for guarantee given
on behalf of one of the related party to the extent of Rs. 6,500 Lacs. In the absence of the audited financial
statements of the party, we are unable to comment whether the terms and conditions are prejudicial to the

_interest of the Company

In our opinion and according to the information and explanatlons given to us on an overall baS|s the term Ioans
have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet the Company as at March 31,2009,the Company has funded its fixed assets and long term
investments of Rs 14,168.59 lacs out of short — term loans.

The Company has not made preferential allotment of shares to the parties and companies covered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordlngly, paragraph 4{xviii) of the said Order is
not applicable.

The Company did not have any outstanding debentures during the year. Accordlngly, paragraph 4 (xix) of the said
Order is not applicable.

The Company has made a preferential issue of share warrants and has also issued equity shares on conversion
of share warrants during the year. The Company has disclosed the end use of money raised and the same has
been verified by us.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
we have neither come across any instance of fraud on or by the Company noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of such case by the management.

~ Vilas Y. Rane
Partner . _
Membership No. F-33220

For and on behalf of

Mumbai . ' . ‘ Price Waterhouse
June 30, 2009 b Chartered Accountants




Elpro international Ltd. i . . o BALANCE SHEET AS AT

MARCH 31, 2009
o As at March 31,2009 As at March 31, 2008
" Schedule Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
1 SOURCES OF FUNDS.. -
- Shareholders’ Funds ‘
Share Capital [ 39517 . - 355.67
Share Warrants I 430.76 -
Share Application Money | - 2,007.14 -
Reserves and surplus i} 3,270.22 1,180:21
" 6,103.29 1,635.88
Loan Funds : '
Secureq loans n 8,723.31 : 11,428.07
Unsecured loans v - 1,443.63 _ : 690.96
. i 10,166.94 - 12,119.03
Deferred tax (Note 14 of Schedule XX} : ~
Deferred tax liability 311.36 ' 311.75
Less: Deferred tax asset (311.386) (311.75)
Deferred tax - Net - - -
16,270.23 13,654.91
Il APPLICATION OF FUND
Fixed assets - Vv :
Gross block 3,892,113 ' : 3,998.38
Less : Accumulated Depreciation _ 2,106.53 ‘ ‘ 2,055.88
Net block ' 1,785.60 1,942,50
Capital Work In Progress including advances 187.71 ) 2,205.56
: - 1,973.31 - 4,148.06
' Investments Vi 25,115.34 : 8,624.16
Current assets,loans and advances o
Stocks : _ . Vil 1,457.48 - 1,520.88
Sundry debtors o vill 230.98 511.99
Cash and bank balances IX 559.08 - 261.29 -
Other current assets X 30.10 165.30
Loans and advances ) (I 3,122.30 7,838.79
5,399.94 10,298.25
Less : Current liabilities and Provisions - -
Current Liabilities . XH 16,381.27 9,426.39
Provisions Xin . 10.77 ‘ 19.59
. : 16,392.04 9,445.98
" Net current assets/(current liabilities) ' {10,992.10) . ' 852.27
Miscellaneous Expenditure. Xiv : ' 173.68 - : 30.42
(To the extent not written off) ‘ —_ —_—
' 16,270.23 13,654.91

Nofes to Accounts ‘ XXI . _
" Schedule | to XXI annexed hereto form part of the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board
Vilas Y. Rane ' - Anil Poddar - - Surbhit Dabriwala

Partner ] . o " Director : * Birector
Membership No: F-33220 ‘

For and on behalf of .
Price Waterhouse
Chartered Accountants

Place: Mumbai - ‘ Place: Mumbal
Date: June 30, 2009 . _ Date: June 30, 2009




PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ": Annual Report 2008-2000
MARCH 31, 2009. | . -

For the year ended For the year ended -
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
Schedule Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
1 INCOME

Sales and Services - Gross XV 1,303.11 L - 2,966.92
Less: Excise Duty 58.22 254.58
Sales and Services - Net - 1,244.89 2,712.34
Other income - XVi 68.32 ' 182.76
1,313.21 2,895.10

I EXPENDITURE )
Materials Xvil 297.48 1,445.09
Employee costs . ‘ Xvi -166.41 _ 305.96
Depreciation : \'} 157.51 . _ 189.34
Interest XIX 1,677.22 . 1,780.31
Other expanses ) XX _ 483.22 : 1,018.87
2,781.84 ) 4,739.57

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX AND _ .
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS . _ - (1,468.63) (1,844.47)

Exceptional ltem :

Provision for diminution in _\}alue of investment .
no longer required written back . 1,191.93 . - -

(Refer Note 19 of Schedule XXI)

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION ' " (276.70) (1,844.47)
Less: Provision for tax -~ ' :

—- Prior.Period Tax h ' : 18.01 B

—  MAT Credit . o  (14.10) - ,

—  Deferred Tax charge / (reversal) - . ‘ (135.99)
—  Fringe Benefit tax ‘ 3.33 7.24 5.71
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR . (283.94) " . {1,714.19)
—  Balance of Profit and Loss Account (brought forward) . ‘ {1,369.15) . " 345.04
BALANCE CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET : {1,653.09) . {1,369.15)
Basic and Diluted Earnings per equity share ) ) .

of face value of Rs. 10/- each : (7.27) (48.20)
(Refer Note 22 of Schedule XXI) : '

Notes-to Accounts | XXl

‘Schedule I'to XXI annexed hereto form part of the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account

As per our report of even date attached . For and on behalf of the Board
Vilas Y. Rane ' : - Anil Poddar ' Surbhit Dabriwala

Partner : : Director . Director
Membership No; F-33220 ‘

For and on behalf of
Price Waterhouse
Chartered Accountants )

Place: Mumbai _ o Place: Mumbai |
Date: June 30, 2009 : ‘ Date: June 30, 2009




Elpro International Ltd.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

MARCH 31, 2009

Cash flow from Operating activities

Cash generated from operations (see note 3)
Miscellaneous Expenditure incurred duriﬁg the year
Fringe Benefits Tax paid

Income tax (paid)/refund - net

Net cash from/ (used in) operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities

Fixed Assets )
—  Purchase

- — - Sale

investments

- ' Purchase (Net)

— * Sale / matured (Net)
Increase in capital expenditure
Interest received

Dividend received

Cash Flows from investing activities before exceptional items

Net cash from / (used in) investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Cash credit, Export packing credit, Term Loans, etc. - net
Inter corporate Deposits/ioans received

Inter corporate Deposits/loans. repaid

Proceeds from isuue of Equity Shares

Proceeds from lssue of Equity Share Warrants

. Bhare Application Money Received

Interest Paid on Loans

Net cash from / {used in) financing activities

D. Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

* Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

,

Notes:
1

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
11,913.81 (4,029.50)
(275.00) : -
(3.33) (5.32)
30.31 (3.00)
11,665.79 (4,037.82)
@4.71) (197.45)
11.01 2.95
(15,301.63) (2,865.81)
7.38 383.90
2,017.85 (1,954.68)
10.44 91.48
0.0 0.08
(13,250.57) (4,540.23)
(13,250.57) . (4,540.23)
3,045.24 13,470.34 -
(6,604.36) (3,811.46)
{45.61) - (18.95)
14,084.27 ° (4,748.37)
(12,622.70) 5,499.52
2,413.45 : -
430.76 -
2,007.14 _
(1,662.67) (1,780.31)
1,045.52 8.610.77
360.74 . 3272

" 198.34 165.62
559.08 198.34
360.74 32.72

The above Cash Flow. Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Accountmg Standard 3 (AS 3)
Cash Flow Statements’ as specified in Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules ,2006

The figures for the previous year have been regrouped where necessary to conform to current period's classification

Cash generated from operationé has been arrived at as follows:




CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2009 (contd )

Annual Report 2008-2009

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
Rs.In Lacs ‘Rs. In Lacs Rs. In'Lacs
Profit/(Loss) before tax (276.70) (1,844.47)
Add / (Less)
Adjustments for non- cash items / items - '
required to be disclosed separately
—  Depreciation /Amorﬁsation 157.51 189.34
- Miscellanebus‘Expenditure written off 131.74 53.25
—  Interest expense 1,662,67 i,780.31
— . Net {profit/loss on sale of fixed assets (6.29) 18.69
—  Interest income {19.44) ~(91.48)
—  Interest income on Income Tax Refund {11.36) -
—  Dividend income (0.09) (0.08)
—  Nest {profit)/loss on’ saie of investments {5.04) (7.48)
- (current) {(non-trade) -
—~  Sundry provisions and balances no (5.23) (21.49)
longer required written back
- Bad Debté/Advances written off,
net of recoveries - 38.84
—  Provision for Bad & Doubtful Advances - 24.00 -
- Foreign Exchange (Gain)/ Loss {5.46) 7.51
-  Excess Depreciation Written Back {0.61) -
- Provision for dimunition in value of Investments (1,191.93) 4.87
: 730.47 o _—
1,972.28
Adjustments for changes in working capital | '
and other provisions B )
Stocks (Increase)/Decrease 63.41 (983.63)
Sundry: debtors (Increase)/Decrease 262.47 ‘516:34
Other current assets (Increase)/Decrease 135.20 . (118.00)
Loans and advances {Increase)/Decrease 3,984.71 ' (7,714.76)
Cur.rent liabilities (Decrease)/increase _ 7,023.06 4,142.74
Provisions (other than taxation) Increase/(Decrease) (8.81) -
11,460.04 (4,157.31)

Cash generated from operations

11,913.81

(4,029.50)




Elpro International Ltd,

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED

MARCH 31, 2009 (Contd.)
4. Cash and cash equivalents cbmprise of : ' ‘

~2008-09 2007-08

Cash on hand 0.40 0.26
Balances‘ with bank on

Current account 270.76 257.82

Margin money account 3.29 2.75

Deposit account 284.63 0.46

Bock Overdraft - (62.95)

559.08 198.34

Y

As per our report of even date attached

Vilas Y. Rane
Partner )
Membership No: F-33220

For and on beh"a\lf of
Price Waterhou§e
Chartered Accountants

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30, 2008

For and on behaif of the Board

Anil Poddar
Director

Place: Mumbai

Date: June 30, 2009

Surbhit Dabriwala

Director
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SCHEDULES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANcEé'"" F
- AS AT 31 MARCH, 2009 _

Annual Report 2008-2009

- As at March 31, 2009

As at March 31, 2008

Notes: _
Secured by exclusive mortgage of immovable property, exclusive charge on-cash flows and collection account arising out of
the project,unconditional and irrecovable corporate guarantee and pledge of shares of a subsidiary company and personal -

1

guarantee of promoters.

The said loan has been assigned to State Bank of Patiala and SICOM Limited durlng the year.:

Rs. Lacs Rs Lacs
. SHARE CAPITAL :

Authorised ‘

10,000,000 (5,000 000)Equ1ty shares of As.10 each 1,000.00 : 500.00

issued -

3,852,000 (3,557,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each . 895.20 - 355.70

Subscribed _ 5 T T

3,951,677 (3,556,677) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up - 395.17 355.67

Note:

Of the above shares, 72,000 (72,000)Equity shares of Rs. 10 each have

been alloted as fully paid up for consideration other than cash.

Equity Share Warrant Issued (Réfer Note 20 of Schedule XX|} 430.76 -

Equity Share Application Money (Refer Note 20 of Schedule XXI) 2,007.14 -

Il.  RESERVES AND SURPLUS : ' ‘
(a) Share premium : As per last balance sheet 7140 © 71.40
. Add:- On issue of Equity Shares during the year 2,373.95 -
Total Share Premium (Refer Note 20 of Schedule XX1) 2,445.35 71.40

(b) General reserve : As per last balance shest 2,300.00 2,300.00
Add : Transferred from Profit and Loss Account - -
Less: Debit Balance of Profit and Loss Account 1,653.09 . 1,369.15
Total General Reserve 646.91 930.85

(c) Amalgamation Reserve: As per last balance sheet 177.96 177.96

3,270.22 1,180.21
ll. SECURED LOANS : '
Loans from Banks
"a) Cash Credit/Packing Credit/Working Capital Demand Loan from Banks 459.41 505.02
Securéd by hypothecation of current assets and certain movable property

b}  Term loan secured by hypothecation of certain cars 3.78 7.61
{Repayable in one year Rs 3.69 lacs (Rs 3.39 lacs)) . )

c)  Term loan secured by hypothecation of Windmills 424.05 469.99
{Repayable in one year Rs 106.80 lacs (Rs 60.39 lacs))

d} Term loan secured by hypothecation of rent receivables & equitable - 468.46
mortgage of certain buildings
{Repayable in one year Rs Nil (Rs 80.17 lacs))

e) - Term Loan - Refer Note (1) below 5,715.32 3,543.16
{Repayable in one year Rs Nil (Rs. 1,400.00 Lag))

{Includes interest accrued and due Rs 65.31 lacs (Rs.43.15 lacs))

f)  Term loan secured by hypcthecation of Company's flat 343.33 425.91
{Repayable in one year Rs 136.07 lacs (Rs 83.00 lacs)) C
(Inciudes interest accrued and due Rs 3.97 lacs {Rs.9.53 lacs))

Loan from Others

a) Term Loan SICOM - Refer Note (1) Below 1,773.06 -
(Repayable in one year Rs 1,750.00 lacs (Rs. Nil )

(Includes interest accrued and due Rs. 23.06 Lacs (Rs. Nil))

b)  DSP Merrill Lynch Capital Limited- Refer Note (2) below - 6,000.00
(Repayable in one year Rs. Nil (Rs.2,400.00 lacs))

¢) Term loan secured by hypothecation of certain cars 4.36 7.92
(Repayable in one year Rs 4.00 lacs (Rs 4.31 lacs)) - —

‘ 8,723.31 11,428.07




=DULES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH, 2009

Elpro International Lid.

As at March 31,2009 ~ As at March 31, 2008
Rs. Lacs Rs Lacs

V. UNSECURED LOANS
inter-corporate Deposits - Short term. .
- From other than banks : 1,443.63 690.96
(Repayable on demand ) ’ ‘ '

1,443.63 690.96
V. FIXED ASSETS | o ' Rs. In Lacs
Gross Block . Depreciation _ Net Block
Description . Asat | Additions | Deletions&| ~ Asat ~ Upto| - Forthe On Asat As at Asat
March 31, during | Adjustments | March31,] March 31, year | Deletions / | March 31, | March3i, | March31,
2008 | theyear| -  during 2009 2008 Sales 2009 2009 2008
TANGIBLE ASSETS
Land — freehold 3.02 - - 302| - - - - 3.02 3.02
Buildings roads and Structures | 97911 | - - 979.11 202.09 18.32 -| 22041 75870 7oz |
Plant and hachinery 1,197.17 341 11096 | 1,089.62 919,55 36.21 106.86 848.90 240.72 277.62
(including office equipments)- ‘ '
Furniture and fixtures 249.43 1.14 -| - 25057 33.47 16.03 - 49.50 | . 201.07 215,96
Vehicles 56.26 - - 56.26 2345 472 -l 28417 28.09 32.81
Windrmill : 768.02 - - 768.02 138.60 7941 | . -| 218.01 550.01 629.42
3,253.01 ' - 455 110.86| 3,14660] 1,317.16 154.69 . 106.86 | 1,364.99 i 1,781.61 1,935.85
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Specialised Software 4197 ode - 4213 3534 282 ~| 3816 3.97 6.63
Technical Knowhow 39.61 - - 39.61 39.591 . - - 39.59 0.02 0.02
Assets given on Lease
Plant and Machinery 663.79 - - €63.79 663.79 - - 663.79 - -
Total (A} 3,998.38 41 11096 | 3,892,13| 2,055.88 157.51 106.86 | 2,106.53] 1,785.60 1,842.50
Capital Work In Progress
includes Advances
(Refer Note 27 of ) : .
Schedu]e XX1) : . 268.09{ 2,285.94
Less: ‘
Provision for doubtful advances 80.38 §0.38
Total (B) o - - . - - R - - - 187.71 | 2,205.56
Total(A+B) - 3,998.38 4.7 11096 | 3,892.13( 2,055.88 157.51 106.86 | 2,106.53 | 1,973.31 4,148.06
Previous year 4,185.42 197.45(  384.49( 3,998.38| ~ 2,230.08 189.34 363.54 | 2,055.88 ;1,148.06
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_ As at March 31, 2009 As at March 31, 2008
Rs. Lacs Rs Lacs
VI. INVESTMENTS
LONG TERM
Unquoted - At Cost
Non-Trade
Government Securities
—  6/7 year National Savings Certificate * 0.10 0.10
—  Kisan Vikas Patra* 0.1 0.11
In a Subsidiary Company ‘
Elpro Estates Limited 149.93 149.93
(1,499,300 (1,499,300) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid) **
Rs. 10 each fully paid up in Elpro Estates Limited
(Formerly known as Trump Properties Limited )
Others
- 226,671,247 (84,166,952) fully paid equity shares of Rs.10 each in : ‘
Metlife India Insurance Company Limited*** 23,868.55 9,618.12
Less:
Provision for diminution in value of Investment (Refer Note 19 of Schedule XXI) - {1,191.93)
23,868.55 8,428.20
—  23(23) equity shares of US$ 1,000 each in B
Glenwood Pte. Limited, Singapore. 10.04 10.04
- 226,977 {(226,977) fully paid equity shares of Rs.10 each in
Dabri Properties & Trading Company Limited 22.50 22.50
~ . 2,500 (2,500) fully paid equity shares in The Saraswat Co-op Bank Ltd 0.25 0.25
Quoted
Non-Trade
- 440 (440) fully paid equity shares of Rs. 2 each in Financial Technologies 7.01 7.01
- 7.95,900 (1,533,900) fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each in
Elpro Packaging Ltd. 3.98 7.67
CURRENT INVESFMENTS
Un Quoted (lower of cost or fair value)
—  5,779,042.40 {Nil) Units Of Reliance Mutual Fund -
Reliance Retall plan Growth plan Growth Option 1,050.00 -
- 210789 (2310 74) units Kotak Gilt Saving Growth Fund 0.43 0.36
—  202.23 ( Nil} units of Templeton India Treasury Management 244 -
Account Regular Plan —_— -_
. 25,115.34 8,624.16
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments (net of provisioﬁs) 25,104.35 8,609.12
Aggregate amount of quoted investments (net of provisions) 10.99 15.04
Market value of quoted investments Rs.10.99 lacs {Rs.14.68 lacs)
*  Lodged with Government authorities.
**  Pledged against term lcans from Bank and others.
***  There are certain restrictions on transterability of these shares.
Statement Of Units Purchased and Sold Durlng the year Units Sold Units Purchased
Mutual Fund : '
Templeton [ndia treasury Management Account — Regular Plan - 202.23
Kotak Gilt Savings Growth . 2,310.70 2,107.90
Reliance Mutual Fund- Reliance Retail plan Growth plan Grthh Option

6,066,589.10

11,845,631.50




Eipro Internationai Ltd.

DULES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 MARCH, 2009

As at March 31, 2009

As at March 31, 2008

VL

Rs. Lacs Rs Lacs
Vil. STOCKS ‘
Stores and spares 7.48 8.78
Raw materials and components 65.10 117.75
Work in progress 70.42 172.60
Finished goods 1.02 8.33
Land held as stock in frade 0.95 . 0.95
Project in Progress — Commercial Division - 861.22
Project in Progress — Housing Division 1,312.51 351.25
' 1,457.48 1,520.88
SUNDRY DEBTORS
(Unsecured)
Over six'months
- Considered good 184.45 147.92
—  Considered doubtful 59.16 .36.00
. 243.61 183.92
Others
- Considered good 46.53 364.07
—  Considered doubtful : - -
290.14 547.99
Less : Provision for doubtful debts (59.16) {36.00)
. 230.98 511,99
Note : Due from subsidiary company
" Elpro Estates Limited . 15.24 - 2.13
‘Maximum balance outstanding during the year 15.24 8.22
IX. CASH AND BANK BALANCES .
Cash on hand 0.40 0.26
Balance with scheduled banks on
Current account * 270.76 257.82
Margin money account 3.29 2.75
Fixed Deposit 284.63 - 0.46
(Under lien Rs 284.17 lacs (Rs.Nil)) —_— —_
. 559.08 261.29
* Includes balances in unclaimed dividend account Rs 2.32 lacs (Rs 3.49 lacs) -
¥
X. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Interest receivable * - 88.70
Claims receivable 20.81 21.67
Price Variance Claim Receivable 9.17 49.82
Other Receivables 0.12 _ 5.11
'30.10 ' 165.30
* Indicates Due from Companies under same managefnent .
- Faridabad investment Co. Ltd. - 63.24
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As at March 31, 2009

‘As at March 31, 2008

' Rs. Lacs Rs Lacs
XI. LOANS AND ADVANCES :
(Unsecured) (Considered good) :
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received ‘ 81.05 89.60
Advances to contractors . ) - 1,541.16
Advances to Suppllers o 165.49 13.23
Balance with customs, excise, VAT and other Statutory authont|es '
and Security. Deposits 106.82 65.87
Recsivable from Joint Venture * (Refer Note 17 of Schedule XXI) . . 4.90 4.90
Advance Tax/TDS8/Refund due from Income tax department , 207.77 174.17
Advance Fringe Benefit Tax (Net) . 1.89 1.89
. MAT Credit entitlement 14.10 -
Advance ’towards share application in Metlife Indla Insurance Company Limited 2,500.00 - 5,185.71
Loans to and deposits with compames e ' 31.98 740.90
Advance to Gratuity Trust : : ' . - - B30 21.36
(Considered doubtful) ’ ' g .
Loans to and deposits with companies (including interest accrued thereon) 51.85 51.95
Less : Provision for doubtful Loans . {51.95) {51.95)
‘ ' 3,122,30 7,838.79
Note ) I -
1} * Indicates receivable from a Subsudlary Company 4.90 4.90
" Elpro Estates Limited o
Maximum balance outstanding during the year _ 4.90 4.90
2) ™ Indicates Due from Comparies under same management
- Faridabad Investment Co. Limited 7.15 736.62
- —  Faridabad Capital Holding Private Limited 1.00 -
Maximum balance oufstanding during the year |
- Faridabad Investment Co. Limited 799.86 799.86
— ' Faridabad Capital Holding Private Limited g 1.00 - -
Xll. CURRENT LIABILITIES : : o
" Sundry Creditors -
- bue to Small and Medium Enterprises (Refer Note 13 of Schedule XXI} - ‘ -
- Due to Others _ 180.78 B857.45
Other Liabilities - . : 55.57 508.04
Advance - from Customers 32.15 60.77 -
Advance - Property Development . 231.85 4,246.82
Advance from Sale /Lease - - 5,256.53 3,240.00
Advance against bookings ' : 10,063.63 329.21
Book Overdraft . - 62.95
Dividend warrants posted but not encashed ) 1.89 3.07 - -
Rental Deposits received , ' : 548.87 . 318.08
‘ 16,381.27 9,426.39
Xill. PROVISIONS : _ . . , ¢
Provision for leave encashment : . 6.23 15.05
Warranty & Other provisions ‘ 4,54 454
' 1077 ‘ 19.59
Xiv. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE :
. (To the extent not written off ) -
Compensation Paid under VRS (Refer Note 26 of Schedule XXy
Opening Balance . 30.42 83.66
Addition during the year : . . 275.00 ‘ -
Amortised during the year -+ . | ' ‘ S ) (131.74) -{53.24)
Closing Balance - ' ' "173.68 30.42




SCHEDULES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE

Elpro international Ltd. = :
: 1.0SS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
RAs. Lacs - Hslacs
XV. SALES AND SERVICES: :
Gross Sales ‘ . 603.37 2,300.24
Income from Windmill 99.97 59.61
income from lease rentals 520.55 343.63
Sale of scrap and other items - 21.00 8.86
- 1,244.89 2,712.34
XVl. OTHER INCOME :
Interest on inter—corporéte deposits/loans, bank deposits,
income tax, efc. (gross) L 19.44 ' 91.48
—~  Tax deducted at source Rs. 3.79 lacs ( Rs. 20.05 lacs) '
Dividend from current investments (Refer Note below) ‘ 009 ' 0.08
Duty drawback ) " 653 15.86
. Sundry provisions and credit balances no longer required written back . 5.23 ‘ 21.49
" Miscellaneous income 1.41 . 46.37
Exchange Gain (net} ‘ ‘ 12.93 ) -
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets . : 6.29 -
- Profit on sale of current investments (Net) 5.04 7.48
Interest on Income Tax Refund ' ‘ 11.36 -
68.32 © 18276
Note - -
Dividend Income Includes _
1)  Dividend Income from Long Term Investment (Non-Trade) 0.05 - 0.08
2) Dividend from Mutual Fund - T 004 ) -
XVI. MATERIALS:
Consumption of raw materiaf and bought out components ;
Opening stock ) _ 118.62 - 228.50
Add: Purchases (including outside processing charges) 1356.35 1,353.71
Less: Closing Stock . 65.98 118.62
Raw Material Consumed ) 187.99 1,463.59
_{Increase)/Decrease in stock of finished goods and work-in-progress :
Opening stocks ' :
Work-in-progress ’ ' 172.60 15511
Finished goods . 8.33 . 732
180.93 ' 162.43
Closing stocks
Work-in-progress . . 7042 172.60
Finished goods o ' ‘ 1.02 8.33
71.44 180.93
(Increase)/Decrease in stocks : 109.49 (18.50)

297.48 1,445.089
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. ' For the year ended

For the year ended

i ' ) - : March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
- Rs. Lacs Rs Lacs
XVill. EMPLOYEE COSTS .
Salaries, wages and bonus , 118.88 243,74
Contribution to Provident and other Funds h 713 21.03
Gratuity ' _ . 14.96 6.47
" Provision for leave encashment T 14,76 7.53"
Welfare expenses . ' 10.68 27.19
’ 166.41 305.96
XIX. INTEREST AND FINANCE CHARGES
Interest . _
~  On loans for fixed periods 1,445.34 711.71
- Others 217.33 580.61
Total : ’ o 1,662.67 1,292.32
Finance charges: o '
Pracessing / upfront fees - 447.19
Bank charges : ' 14.55 40.80
Total ’ : . 14.55 487.99
' 1,677.22 " 1,78031
‘ _ XX. OTHER EXPENSES : ,
j Stores consumed , ' ‘ 13.48 77.46
' ‘Power and fuel (net of recoveries) . ’ 22.89 164.36
Travelling and conveyance . 23.96 T 33.92
Fareign Travelling Expenses o _ 4.69 19.78
Repairs to machinery _ ' 2.50 20.63
Repairs to building _ o : - 4.23 0.81
Other repairs and maintenance 13.82 22.14
Insurance . ‘ ) o 453 5.78
Rent 25.61 13.77
Rates and taxes 13.03 17.08
Director’s Fees ‘ B . 1.11 1.08
Commission 54 16.16 .
Penaliies for late deliveries (net of recoveries ) : ' - 0.03 3.04
Telephone, Telegram & Telex o : _ 6.86 11.23
Provision for Bad and Doubful debts - , 24.00 8.53
: Provision for Bad and Doubtful advances ' ~ 30.26
: Bad Debts/Advances written off (net of recoveries) L - - 005
Legal and Professional charges ‘ : 85.17 364.14
Freight outward (net of recoveries) ) 14.34 34.71.
Miscellaneous Expenditure written off - _ 131.74 53.25
Diminution in value of investment ' - 4.87
Loss on sale of Fixed assets { Net) : ‘ . - 18.69
Exchange Loss ( Net ) C - ) - 7.51
‘Miscellaneous expenses 85.84 89.62

' : 483.22

1,018.87

-




Elpro International Ltd. - o NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS (contd.)

SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009
'SCHEDULE XXi .
1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a.

&

Basis of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (*GAAP”)

under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis and are in conformity with mandatory accounting standards,

as prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards ) Rules, 20086, the provisions of the Companies Ac’t 1956 and
guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of Indla (SEBI).
Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformlty with GAAP requires Management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosure relating to contlngent fiabilities as

“ at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period. Examples of

such estimates include provision for doubtful debts, future obligations under employee retlrement benefit plans income
taxes and the usefu! lives of fixed assets and intangible assets. ‘

Management believes that the ‘estimates used in the preparation of financial statements are prudent and reasonable.
Future results could differ from these estimates.
Fixed assets and depreciation

i)y Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or constructlon less depreciation. Cost comprises of purchase price
and other costs directly attributable to the purchase or acquisition of the assets and costs attrubutable to bringing
the asset to its present location and condition for the intended use.

ii) Depreciation is provided on straight line method, except for assets acquired prior to January 1, 1987 which are ‘

depreciated on reducing balance method, at the'rates and in the manner specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies
Act, 1956 as applicable from time to time, except for assets costing less than Rs. 5,000 each which are fully
depreciated in the year of purchase.

iii) Capital work in progress represents expendituie mcurred in respect of capital projects under development and are

carried at cost. Cost includes land, related acquisiticn expenses, construction costs, borrowmg costs capitalized
and other direct expenditure and advances to contractors and others.

Investments

Long-term 1nvestments are valued at cost. Prowsmn for diminution, if any in the value of investments is made to recognise

a decline, other than temporary.

Current investments are stated at the lower of cost and fair value, computed individually for each mvestment In case of
investments in mutual funds which are unquoted, net assets value is taken as fair value.

Inventories

Inventories- are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In determining the cost of loose tools, stores and
spares, raw materials and components, the weighted average method is used. Cost of manufactured components, work
in progress and manufactu red finished goods include cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition which is determined on absorption cost basis.

Inventories - Prolect in progress
Project in progress is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes cost of iand, materials, construction,
services, borrowing costs and other overheads relating to the particular projects.

Sundry Debtors and Loans and. Advances

Specific debts and advances identified as irrecoverable or doubtful are writien off or provuded for, respectlvely

Foreign exchange t transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the prevailing exchange rates on the transaction dates. Realised
gains and losses on settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognized in the profit and loss account, except
those relating to fixed assets acquired from outside India till March 31, 2007, which were adjusted in the carrying cost of
such fixed assets.

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the year end are translated at the year end exchange rates and
resultant exchange dlﬁerences are recognised in the profit and loss account.
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n.

Revenue recognition

i) Sale of goods is recognised on despatch to customer and are recorded net of sale tax and excise duties and
excludes export incentives such as duty drawbacks . : :

ii) Rental income is recognised on accrual basis.

i) Income from Joint develdpment of property will bé recognized, when Sale Deed will. be executed in favour of the
third party. ’

Iv) Revenue from wind mill power project is recognised on the basis of actual power sold as per the terms of the power
purchase agreements entered into with the respective parties. . ‘

V) Income from projects is recognized on the transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyers
and it is not unreasonable to expect ultimate collection and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of
consideration. However if, at the time of transfer, substantial acts are yet to be performed under the agreement,
revenue is recognized on proportionate basis as the acts are performed, i.e. on the percentage of completion basis,
Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily involves making estimates by |
the Company, some of which are of a technical nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentages of completion,
costs to completion, the expected revenues from the project and the foreseeable losses to completion. Such estimates
have been relied upon by the auditors. ‘

" Research and development expenditure

Research and development expenditure, other than capital expenditure, is e;épensed out as and when incurred,’

' Retirement benefits

~— Gratuity:

Liabilities with regard to the gratuity benefits payable in future are determined by ‘actuarial valuation at each Balance
Sheet date using the Projected Unit Credit method and contributed to Employees Gratuity Fund managed by Life
Insurance Corporation of India. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized
in the Profit and Loss account in the period which they arise. ’

— Leave encashment )

The Company provides for the encashment of leave with pay subject to certain rules. The employees are entitled to
accumulate leave subject to certain limits, for future encashment/availment. The liability is provided based on the
number of days of unutilized leave at each balance sheet date on the basis of an independent actuarial valuation.

— Provident fund

_ Provident fund contributions are made to a trust administered by the Company and are charged to the Profit and loss

account. The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall if any, between' return of investment by the trust
and government administered interest rate. ’

Provisions

Provision is made when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an ouiflow of
economic resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent
liability is made, when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. Whenthere is a possible obligation or a present cbligation in respect of which the likelihood of
outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

i) Liguidatéd damages/penalties are provided for mesting the obligations arising from delay in cbntractual delivery
schedules. ‘

i) Provision for probable warranty claim is based on Management's estimate and judgment and is provided as a
percentage of average claims of past three years for average warranty period of 18 months. '
Miscellaneous expenditure (to the extent not written off)

Compensation paid under Voluntary Retirement Scheme to be ammortised fully upto March 31, 2010, as per the
provisions of Accounting Standard 15 — on Employee Benefits.

"Assets Taken and Given on Lease

Assets taken on lease:

a. Inrespect of finance lease arrangements, the assets are capitalized and depreciated. Finance charges are charged
off to the Profit and Loss account of the year in which they are incurred.

- b. Operating lease payments are recognized as expenditure in the Profit and Loss account on straight line basis,

representative of the time pattem of benefits received from the use of the assets taken on lease.
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Asset given on lease:

Lease rentals are accounted on accrual basis in accordance with the respective lease agreements.

0.

Accounting for taxes on income

Provision for current tax is made, based on the tax payable under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Minimum Alternatlve Tax
{MAT) credit, which is equal to the excess of MAT (calculated in accordance with provisions of section 115JB of the
Income tax Act, 1961) over normal income-tax is recognized as an asset by crediting the Profit and Loss Account only
when and to the extent there is convinging evidence that the Company will be able to avail the said credit against normal.
tax payable during the pericd of seven succeeding assessment years.

Deferred tax on timing- differences between taxable income and accounting income is accounted for, using the tax rates
and the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted as on the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed tax
losses and unabsorbed tax depreciation are recognised only when there is a virtual certainty of their realisation. Cther
deferred tax assets are recognised only when there is a reasonable certainty of their realisation.

Impairment

The Company reviews the carrying value of tangible and lntanglble assets for any possible impairment at each balance
sheet date. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
In assessing the recoverable amount, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at appropriate
discount rates.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are dlsclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past evenis but their existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non -occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within control of
the Company. A provision is made based on a reliable estimate when it is probable that an cutflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle an obligation at the year end date. Contlngent assets are not
recognized or-disclosed in the financial statements.

Segment Reporting

Segments have been identified having regard to the dominant source and nature of risks and returns and the internal
organisation and management structure. Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of market price. Unallocated
corporate expenses include revenue and expenses which relate to the enterprise as a whale and are not attributable to

‘segments.

Borrowing Costs

~Borrowing Costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset is capitalized as

part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

2008-09 2007-08
‘ Rs. In Lacs As. In Lacs
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on

capital account and not provided for — 4,503.00
Contingent liabilities not provided for: )
a. Income tax matters in dispute at various stagés of appeal 23713 237.13
b. Excise duty 8.75 7.52
c. Service tax 4.75 4.75
d. Employee related matters Amount not Amount not
. ascertainable ascertainable

e. Sales tax matters 34.09 18.18
f.  Other matters ) 37.58 37.58
g. Bank guarantees {secured by hypothecation of current assets) 167.55 - 386.98
h. Corporate guarantees ‘ 6,500.00 2.95
i. Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts 267.00 267.00
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O TP @m PR AD

2008-09 2007-08

: _ Rs. In Lacs As. In Lacs
Miscellaneous expenses include Auditors’ remuneration:
a. Audit fees ‘ 12.50 , 9.50
b. Taxauditfees . o — 2.50
c. Reimbursement of actual out-of-pocket expenses 0.62 0.44
Repairs to machinery includes spares consumed 2.50 18.47
Earning in foreign currency on account of:
a. Expoits of F.O.B. basis 266.09 669.95
b. " Recovery of freight etc. '6.98 26.17
Expenditure in foreign currency on account of:
a. Technical services (gross) — 15.50
b. Commission . — 0.156
c. Others ) o ' ) . 1.24 -

Managerial remuneration debited to the Profit & Loss Account is Rs.9.33 lacs (Rs.8.74 lacs) jncludihg Directors’ fees of
Rs.1.11 lacs (Rs.0.99 lacs) and perquisites of Rs. Nil Lacs (Rs.0.06 lacs) but excludes accrual for gratuity and leave encashment
as it is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation for the Company as a whole. -

Value of imports on CIF bas'is

“a. Raw materials . ' 3.15 67.56

b. Machinery spares‘ ' . ‘ —_ 2.08
¢. Components . _ . ) — 72.47

Value of imported and indigenous raw materials and components consumed (**)

2008-09 2007-08
. ) Rs. In Lacs % Rs. In Lacs %
Imported 3.15 1.67 © 192.85 13.18
Indigenously brocured .o . 184.84 98.33 1,270.74  86.82
‘ 187.99 100.0c0 . 1,463.59 100.00

(*) “Spare paris and components” referred to in para 4D(c) of Schedule Vi to the Companies Act, 1956 have beén interpreted to
mean the iters incorporated in the finished goods for sale and not those issued for repairs and maintenance of plants and machinery.

Raw materials and components consumed .
2008-09 2007-08

Unit Quantity - Value Quantity ) Value
. (Rs. In Lacs) . (Rs. In Lacs)
Raw Materials '
Non Ferrous - .
Zinc Oxide _ . Ka. —_ — 130,000 210.06
Other Ferrous and Non Ferrous RM Kg. 162 3.15 — 169.13
Components ' _
Porcelain . : No. - 10,885 4155 51,004 43367
Aluminum Pipes Mtr. - _ 5,619 2.28
Others ‘ —_ 143.29 : —_ 648.45-
187.99 _ 1,463.59
Notes:

a. The consumption in 9 and 10 above is arrived at as a balancing figure by adding to opening stocks, the purchases made
during the year and deducting there from the closing stocks. The figure under ‘Other disclosed in B(c) above, is a
balancing figure in order to agree with the consumption shown in the Profit and Loss Account. Consequently, obsclete
raw materials and components written off and excess/ shortage on physical verification are included in consumption.
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11. Details of iicensed and installed capacities and production
Unit Licensed Capaci_iy {*} Installed Capacity (**) Production (***)
2008-09 2007-08  2008-09  2007-08 2008-09  2007-08

Lightning Arre_éters ‘Nos. 746,000 746,000 850,000 850,000 28,004 36,993 -
Accessories & Spares Nos. — C— — —. 11,466  1,50,000
Varistors . Nos. 6,800,000 6,800,000 11,800,000 11,800,000 60,242  3,31,358
Note : ' ' :

*

Licensed capacities disclosed include / represent capacity indicated in the prescribed memoranda filed with Depariment
of Industrial Development (Secretariat of Industrial Approvals) in terms of Notification No.477 (E) dated July 25, 1991.

Installed capacity is dependent on product mix and is as certified by the management and not verified by the auditors as
being a technical matter. .

*i

*** Production represents production meant for sale and excludes cap_tive consumption,

12.  Details of opening and closing stock of goods produced and sold

Product : Stock as on- Stock as at Stock as on Sales during Sales during
31.3.07 31.3.08 313.09 - 2008-09 2007-08
Nos. Value Nos.- Value Nos. V_alue ) Nos. Value - Nos, Value

Lightning S )
Arresters — 57 549 _ 150 1.02 27,911 36,993
Accessories and ‘ '
Spares 5,000 3.41 — —_ — — 11,466 521.34 1,50,000 ) 2,168.46
Varistors 1,08,731 391 1,09,690 2.84 — — 60,242 82.03 3,30,999 131.78

' 7.32 © 833 . 1.02 603.37 2,300.24
Notes:

1. Included under appropriate classes of goods is the turmover of compdnents, etc. referred to in No.10 (B)
2. Sale quantity includes free samples, replacements etc.

3. Sale figure given above include revenue from manufacturing activity, but excludes revenue genefaged from providing of
services. o ' - - a o

13.  There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Company owss dues, which are outstanding‘for more than 45 days

as atMarch 31, 2009.This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development

Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information aya/ilabie with the

Company. o . _ )

14. - Break up of Deferred Tax asset / liability {net) o L 2098-09 . 2007-08
. S As. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs

i. Break-up of deferred tax liability as at March 31, 2009

' Additional depreciation on fixed assets for tax purposes due to )
higher tax déepreciation rates. : 311.36 - 311.75

Total deferred tax liability - o 311.36¢ 31175
ii. Break-up of deferred tax asset as at March 31, 2009 '
Provision for doubtful debits/advances that are deducted for

tax purposes when written off.- ' 47.43 8671

On prdvi.s‘ejdn for employee benefits / voluntary retirement scheme compensation T "'19..23 7.10

, »9h/z§;her items - S - 4.0 439
‘On unabsorbed depreciation allowance and brought forward business loss

(to the extent of residual deferred tax liabilities) . - .240.60 263.55

Deferred tax asset o ‘ o 311.36 311.75

Net deferred tax liability /(asset) (Net) ' e ‘ Nil Nil
Note: S -

As at March 31, 2009, the Company has ca’rgy,,‘fonﬁrd losses under the Tax Laws. As a matter of prudence the Company
has recognized deferred tax assets ohly;tﬁ’th’e extent of deferred tax liabilities as at March 31, 2009,

e
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15.

16.
17.

18.

19.

20.

Warranty provision _ : 2008-09 2007-08
- 7 : Rs. In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
Carrying amount as at the beginning of the year o 4,54 454

Additional provision made during the year . _ —
Amount used during the year . —_

Unused amount reversed during the year : —_

Cérrying amount as at the end of the year ‘ 454 4.54

* The Investment in Elpro Packaging Limited has been stated at an estimated realisable amount.

The Company has entered into agreements with Elpro Estates L|m1ted for Joint Development of its properties located at
Chmchwadgaon Pune.

Breakup of Company’s interest in Joint Venture is as follows:

2008-09 - 2007-08

, _ Rs.InLacs  Rs. InlLacs
Receivable from Joint Venture as share of profit . C 4.90 . 4.90
Contribution as land - ' 005 - 0.05
Total - 4.95 4.95

Derivative transactions

' Thé Company has not entered into any derivative contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk.

The net unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the year-end amounted to USD 1.55 lacs (Previous year USD 1.86 lacs).

- Investments being made in Met life India Insurance Company Limited is long term in nature. In the opinion of the management

the realisable value of these investments in more than the bock value as at March 31, 2009. During the year, the Company
reviewed the provision made in an earlier year for diminution in value of investments in Met Life india Insurance Company

Private Limited. Accordlngly, the said provision was written back fully as considered no longer required and disclosed as an
exceptional item.

. Changes in Share capital

A During the year the authorized share-capital of the Company is increased from Rs 50,000,000 divided into 5, 000 goo
equity shares of Rs 10 each to Rs 100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each,

B During the year, the Company has issued convertible equity share warrants and has also issued equity shares on the
conversion of share warrants. The details of which are given below:

1,100,000 convertible Warrants issued on a preferentlal basis to foreign institutiona! investors carrying an entitlement to
apply for allotment of one Equity share of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs 601 per share on following terms and
conditions.

(i) The Warrants shall be convertible (at the sole option of the warrant holders) at any time within a period of 18
months from the date of allotrnent of warrants. -

(i} Each Warrant shall be convertible into one Equity Share of Rs. 10 /- each apport:oned towards the Equity shares
and the balance amount paid against each warrant towards the share premium.

(i) The Warrant holder(s) shall, before the date of al[otment shall pay an amount equivalent to 10 % of the consideration
per warrant. ’

{iv) The Warrant holder(s) shall, on the date of exercise of conversion option pay balance 90 % of the consideration
. towards subscription to each Equity share.

(V) The amount referred to in {iii) shall be forfeited if the option to acquired shares is not exermsed within a period of 18
months from the date of allotment of warrants. :

{vi) The lock in of Equity Shares allotted by Allottees by the exercise of Warrants shall be for a period of 1(one) year
reduced to the extent of holding penod of Warrants.

(vii) ‘The Warrant holder shall be entitled to future issue of honus frights if.any of Equity Shares or Warrants convertible
into equity share or such other securities by the Company in same proportion and in manner as any other shareholders
of the Company, provided the warrant are converted into Equity shares before such corporate action .The Warrant
holder's will be intimated about any such corporate action appropnately

(viii) The Warrant by itself does not give to the holder(s) thereof any right of the shareholder’s of the Company

-
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21.

The total proceeds received and utilized by the Company is as follows:
Proceeds received from issue and conversion of Warrants

1 10% of 1,100,000 equity share warrants at Rs. 611 each

2. 80% on conversion of 395,000 warrants into equity shares at Rs 611 each

3. 90% on exercise of conversion options 365,000 warrants by warrant holder

Total

The money received on account of issue of equity shares /shares warrants has been invested /utilized as follows:

Particulars

Property development operations -
Repayments of existing debts of a subsrdlary
Repaymenis of existing debts

Temporarily invested in Mutual fund and inter corporate deposit.given
Invested in Met Life india Insurance Company Private Limited .

General corporate purpose
Totat

Related party disclosures

(a) Names of related parties and nature of relationship where transactions have taken place during the year

1. Faridabad Investment Co. Ltd.
2. Dabri Properties & Trading Co. Ltd.

3. Intemational Conveyors Limited

4.  Mr. Surbhit Dabriwala
Mr. R. K. Dabriwala

Elpro Estate Limited (Formerly known as
Trump Properties Limited)

7. IGE (1) Lid.

8. Faridabad Capital 'Holding Pvt Limited

9. Elpro Packaging Limited

Rs in lacs - '

672.10 I
2/172.11
2,007.13
4,851.34

Amount in lacs !
357.63
1,276.65
773.42
769.91
1,661.59 |
12.14
" 4,851.34 o

Investing party/promoter company
Associate

Enterprlse over which Key Management Personnel
exercise significant influence

Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel

Subsidiary '
Enterprise over which promoter company exercise
significant influence .

Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel
exercise significant influence

Associate (ceases to be an associate with effect
from November 24,2008) -

(b) Nature and volume of transactions during the year with the above related parties were as follows

i) Investing party : Faridabad - lnvestment Co Ltd

Nature of transactions

Transactions during the year

1} ICD Given

2) Repayment received on ICD's giveri
3) Interest Income

Balances
1) Receivables

March 31,2009  March 31,2008 - !

(Rs. Lacs) (Rs. Lacs) ]

225,00 670.00 ;

1,024.86 100.00 ;
9.01 63.24
745 799.86
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i)

Associate : Dabri Properties & Tradir}g Co Ltd .
: March 31,2009

(Rs. Lacs)
Nature of transactions ‘
Transactions during the year |
1) Repayment made on ICD's taken : 0.43
2) Interest expense , ' Nil
Balances
1) Payable : ' . . Nil

i)

v)

Associate : Elpro Packaging Ltd (ceases to be an associate from Nov 24,2008) -
March 31,2009

) A (Rs.)
Nature of transactions _

Transactiéns during the year

1) ICD received ‘ o . Nil
2) Repayment made on ICD's taken , ' ~ 164.75
3) " Interest expense : 0.00
Balances

1) Payable I 0.00

Enterprise over which Key managemeht Personnel have significant influence :

International Conveyors limited
. March 31,2009

(Rs. Lacs)
Nature of transactions ‘
Transactions ddring the year
1) ICD received 3,348.00
2) Repayment made on ICD’s taken 3,350.00
3) Interest expense : ' 18.80
4) Advance Received towards booking 2,300.00
Balances .
1) Payable ' , 14.32
2) Advance towards booking 2,300.00

Enterprise over which Key management Personnel have significarit influence :

Faridabad Capital Holding Pvt Ltd.
March 31,2009

‘ _ . {RAs. Lacs)
Nature of transactions .
Transactions during the year

1} ICD Given * f " 3.00

Balances
1) Receivable 1.00

March 31,2008
{Rs. Lacs)

8.17
0.56

0.43

March 31,2008
(Rs.) -

185.00
125.00
12.61

164.75

March 31,2008
~ (Rs. Lacs)

' 410.00
410.00°

2.30

Nil

1.78
Nif

March 31,2008
(Rs. Lacs)

Nil

Nit
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vi) Enterprise over which Promoter Company exercise Significant_influence: IGE {India) Ltd.
March 31,2009 - March 31,2008

. (Rs.Lacs) (Rs.Lacs)
_ Nature of transactions

Transactions during the year
1) ICD received ‘ ‘ 6,073.00 _ 5,003.00
2) Repayment made on ICD's taken ' 5,018.99 5,190.00
3) Interest expense 92.80. - 167.12
4) Rent and other expenses ' ‘ 8.60 3.00
5) Corporate guarantee given ‘ , 6,500.00 Nil
Balances _ . -
1) Payable : 1,236.89  200.42

- vii) Subsidiary : Elpro Estates Limited (Fofinerly Known as Trump Properties Limited)
‘ ' ‘ March 31,2009  March 31,2008

(Rs.Lacs) {Rs.Lacs)
Nature of transactions :
Transactions during.the year
1} Amount received on redemption of Preferential Shares - Nil 149.54
2) Additional Investment during the year - _‘ Nil - 14993
- 3) Income - o 12.00 12.00
4) interest Expense : ‘ ' I\iil 268.09
5) Advance Received towards booking/property development 9,065.70 4,922.23
6) Refunded : 2841.58 4549.91
7} Transfer on account of JDA Agreement (Refer Note 27 of Schedule XX} 3948.06 Nil
Balances ' ‘ .
1) Receivable _ ‘ : 20.14 Nil
2)‘ AdVanées received against sale bookings 6,438.48. Nil
3} Advance received towards property developme_nt . ' 231.85 4,246.82

viil) Key Managemenf Personnel : Mr. S, Dabriwala
: ' ‘March 31,2009  March 31,2008

i - (Rs.Lacs) "(Rs.Lacs)
Nature of transactions . ‘ :
Transactions during the year _
. 1) Remuneration 9.33 8.74

ix) Relative of Key Management Personnel : Mr. R. K. Dabriwala

March 31,2009 March 31,2008

: (Rs.Lacs) {Rs.Lacs)
Nature of transactions :

Transactions during the year

1) Director's Sitting fees : . ' 0.17 ' 0.18
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-

22.  Eaming per share ’ : ‘ 2008-09 2007-08

Profit /(Loss) after tax and exceptional |tems (Rs In Lacs) (283.94) - (1,714.19)
Weighted average number of equity shares used for

calculating basic earnings per share ‘ : 3,907,307 3,556,677
Woeighted average number of eqdity shares used for ) .

calculating diluted earnings per share 3,907,307 3,656,677
Face value of Equ'ity Shares {Rs.) . © 10. . 10
Earning per share- Basic & D|Iuted (Fls ) . (7.27) (48.20)

The share warrants outstandlng as on March 31, 2009 are considered antldllutwe as fair value of equity shares to be issued
is less than the issue prlce

23.  During the previous year, the Oompany converted Iand admeasuring 0:41Lacs Sq.Ft. situated at Chinchwadgaon, Pune as
stock in trade. Consequently Rs. 0.08 lacs, being cost of converted land has been reduced from fixed assets and shown
separately in “Schedule VII Stocks” as “Land held as stock in trade”.

24,  Segment information-
a) Primary Business Informatlon (Busmess Segments)

These busmess segments represent primary basts of information set out in the financial statements. In accordance with
the Accounting Standard 17, ‘Segment Flepomng the Segment Informatlon for the year ended March 31, 2009 is given

as follows:
Electrical " Real | Investment - _ Others | Elimination | - Total
Equipments, Estfate | ~  Activity - Rs. In Lacs,
SEGMENT REVENUE N ‘
External Sales . 624.37 ' 520.55. — | 9987 — | 1,244.89
' ' | (2,198.02) (343.63) = (192.69) @200) | (2712.34)
Inter - segment Sales — - - - .. = C
. 00 =] ) [ (2200
Revenue . ' - . , ' 1,é44.i39
' ‘ (2,712.34)
RESULT , ‘ '
Segment result -156.78 506.65 ; —_ 20.56 370.43
, (-129.96) (342.73) {—) (85.83) : . (298.60)
Unallocated corporate
expenses (net of unallocable . ) .
income) A - 161.84
' (362.76)
Operating Profit/{Loss) o
before Exceptional item : ) 208.59
_ ' ' (-64.16)
Exceptional item ' ‘ T 1,191.93
- ' S N =)
Operating Profit/(Loss) : ’
after Exceptional item ) _ : 1,400.52
' (-64.16)
Interest Expenses , ‘ _ ‘ " 1,677.22
_ (1,780.31)
Profit/(Loss) before _ ¢ )
Tax & Prior period expense ' - . (276.70)
‘ ' ' ‘ (-1,844.47) |

.
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Electrical Real | Investment Others | Elimination Total

Equipments Estate Activity | ‘ Rs. In Lacs
Prior Period Expenses - (-
=
Profit/{Loss) before Tax &
after Prior Period expense ’ - (276.70)
{-1,844.47)
Income faxes / Deferred ‘
tax Reversal . . . (7.24)
, ' (130.28)
i\let Profit/ (Loss) . - . ‘ .
after tax : . . (283.94)
‘ (-1,714.19)
Other information "
Segment assets 818.26 | 1,951.20 | 26,565.35 551.01 | 29,885.91
(1,372.87)' |  (4,990.33) | (13,809.87) (692.11) | (20,865.18)
Unallocated corporate assets . ' ‘ -2,602.68
(2,205.29)
Total asseté o | . ‘ ' _ . 32,488.59
' . : _ (23,070.47)
Segment liabilities 658.70 16,160.50 — 424.05 17,243.25
‘ ' (1,139.73) | (4,990.03) ; . {—) (474.35) (6,604.11)
Unallocated corporate - . ' .
liabilities ) ) 9,315.73
(14,960.90)
Total liabilities : : ' 26,558.99
‘ | (21,565.01)
Capital Expenditure : — = — — : —
(747) | (81.31) —) (2.18) (90.96)
Unallocated capital 1
Expenditure .. : . 4.7
{106.49)
Total capital expenditure . . ' ‘ ' 4.7
! ' (197.45)
Depreciation 44.81 950 | . — 79.41 ' 133.72
' - (79.68) 563 | = (79.55) | - (164.86)
Unallocated Depreciation . ' .. 2379
_ - E (24.48)
Total Depreciation . ' 157.51
' B 1 (18034
Non cash expenses other : ,
than depreciation — L= - 131.74 | 131.74
B N ) N N O (53.25)
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b)  Secondary Segment — Geographical Segments

Domestic Export  Total

Segment revenue by geographical area ' '
Based on geographical location of customers 961.96 282.93 1,244.89
{Including net sales, services etc.) i {2,016.21) (696.13)  (2,712.34)
Segment Assets by geographical area l 32,411.32 77.27 - 32,488.59
_ j (22,693.39) . (377.08)  (23,070.47)
Capital Expenditure ' : 47 7 - 4.71

(197.45) (—)  (197.45)°

Note:

Corresponding figures in bracket pertains to previous year. '

Segment assets Include all operating assets used by the segment and consist primarily of debtors, current assets and
fixed assets net of pravisions and allowances. Segment fiabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally
of creditors and other payables. ltems that relate to the enterprise as a whole or at the corporate level not attributable to
a particular segment are included under “unallocated”.

The Real Estate segment includes Lease rental income and Development of Housing Projects.

Electrical equipments segment includes manufacturing and sales of lightning arrestér, varistor, Secondary surge
arresters,Discharge Counter."Others” represents income generated from windmill.

During the year the Company has reclassified Varistors from Segment — ‘Others’ to Elecirical Equipment Segment.

25.  Operating leases

i}

The Company's significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for premises (sheds and office,
efc.). These leasing arrangements, which are non-cancelable range between 11 months and 8 years generally and are

~ usually renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeabie terms. Aggregate lease rentals receivable are recognised

as Rent in Schedule XV,

Other disclosures in respect of Building assets given on cperating.lease .

Buildings . ' ~2008-09 2007-08
& Rs.In Lacs Rs.In Lacs
Gross block : ' ' 275.65 275.46
Accumulated depreciation . 55.70 416.19
Depreciation recognized during the year . . ' 9.51 8.06
 2008-09 2007-08
: (Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs)

Lease Rental Receipt for the year . ) : . 520.55 | 34363
Future minirmum lease rentals Receipté not later than one year ' 612.49 286.75
. latet than bne‘year but not later than five years ' ’ 1,743.35 762.82

fii)

Other disclosures in respect of assets taken on operating lease.

The Company has entered into Operating Lease arrangements towards use of office facilities. The minimum future
payments during non-cancelable period under the foregoing arrangements in the aggregate for each of the following
period is as follows: -

2008-09 2007-08

(Rs. in lacs) (As in lacs) .
Lease rental payments for the year o o . . 8.60 3.00
Futhre minimum lease rentals payments payable . R
Not later than-one year ‘ 12.60 3.00

fater than one year but not later than five years : : —_ —

26. During the year the Company declared voluntary retirement scheme (VRS) for its employees at Chinchwad factory.
The total cost of VRS paid amounted to Rs 275 lacs. The same would be amortised till March 31,2010 in accordance W|th
Accounting Standard 15 on “Employee benefits”, :
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27.  During the year, the Company has entered into a ‘Joint development Agreement' (JDA ) with ‘Elpro Estates Limited’
(Formerly known.as “Trump Properties Liinited’ ), a Subsidiary Company for the Joint Development of the Commercial
project . In terms.of the JDA Provisions the Company has transferred the Capital Work-In-Progress and the related liabilities
on account of the commercual prolect to E]pro Estates. lelted

28.  There are no dues payable to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as at March 31, 2009,

'29.  The Company has its own Provident fund trust covering the employees of Elpro International Ltmlted and as the fund would.
have to-meet any interést shortfall, it is to be construed as a defined benefit plan in terms of recent Accounting Standards
Board (ASB) guxdance on implementing AS 15 (Revised 2005) issued by the ICAI. However, in the absence of guidance’
note from the Actuarial Society. of India, the Company’s actuary has expressed his inability to reliably measure the provident
fund liability. Accordingly, the Company has accounted for the same as a defined contribution plan.

30. . The following table sets forth the funded status of the plan assets and the amounts relating to gratuity and Leave encashment

recognized in the Company’s Financial as at March 31, 2009,

A. Gratuity benefits: -

1. Assumptions Ason31.03.09  Ason 31.03.08
Discount 8.0% 8.0%
Salary Escalation '5.0% 5.0%

2. Table showing changes in ptesent value of Rs In Lacs Rs. In Lacs
obligation As on 31.03.09 - Ason 31.03.08
Present value of obligations at the beginning of year 74.32 76.18
lnterect cost 5.95 £.09

_ Current service cost 4.45 4,45
Benefits paid (77.60) (12.99)
Actuarial {gain)/loss of cbligations 7.03 0.59
Present value of obligations as at end of year 14,15 74.32 -

3. Table showing changes in the fair value of plan Rs In Lacs Rs In Lacs
assets As on 31.03.09 As on 31.03.08
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 95.68 96.19
Expected return on plan assets 4.37 8.78.
Contributions 7 — 3.70

Benefits paid (77.60) (12.99)
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on p'lan assels — —
Fair value of plan asscts at the end of year 22.45 95.68

4. Table showing fair value of plan assets Rs In Lacs Rs In Lacs

: \ . Ason 31.03.09. As on 31.03.08
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 95.68 © 96.19
Actual return on plan assets - ‘ 4.37 8.78
Contributions = 3.70
Benefits paid (77.60) (12.99)
Fair value of pléln assets at the, end of year 22.45 95.68
Funded status 8.30 21.36

Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets
(Actual rate of return = Estimated return as ARD falls on 31= March, 2009)
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Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year

Fair value of plan assets at the end of year

As on 31.03.09

- 5. Actuarial Gain/Loss recognized Rs In Lacs Rs In Lacs
_ As on 31.03.09  Ason 31.03.08

Acluarial Gainf(Loss) for the year — obligation , (7.03) (0.59)
Actuarial (Gairi)lLoss for the year — plan assets — —

Total (Gain)/Loss for the year 7.03 0.59
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in the year 7.03 0.59

The amounts to be recognized in the balance sheet and Rs In Lacs Rs In Lacs
state_ments of Profit & Loss Account As on 31.03.09 As on 31.03.08
Present Valuie of obligations as at the end of year 14.15 74.32

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 2245 95.68
Funded status 8.30 21.36

Net assets/(Liability) recognized in the year ' 8.30 21.36
Expensés recognized in statement of Profit & Loss Acount Rs In Lacs Rs In Lacs

: Ason 31.03.09 . Ason 31.03.08

Current service cost - 4.45 . -4.45
Interest cost ' ‘ 5.95 6.09
Expected return on plan assets (4.3'7) (8.78)

NNet Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the year _ 7.03 " 0.59
Expenses recognized in statement of Profit & Loss Account ' ) 13.06 2.35

B Leave ehcashment:

1. Acturial Assumptions ' As on 31.03.09 | As on 31.03.08
Discount ' - 175% 8.0%
Salary Escalation " 5:0% 5.0%

2. Table showing changes In present value o AsIn Lacs Rs In Lacs
Obligation : As on 31.03.09 As on 31.03.08
Present value of obligations at the beginning of year | 16.53 18.11
Interest cost 1.24 1.44
Current service cost 141 3.65
Benefits paid (25.06) (7.96)
Actuarial (gain)lloss of obligations 12.11 1.27
Present value of obligations as at end of year 6.24 16.51
Table showing changes in the fair value of plan assets Rs In Lacs Rs In Lacs

As on 31.03.08

Expected return on plan assets N.A N.A.
Contributions . N.A N.A
Benefits paid — —
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on plan assets N.A N.A
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4.

Rs In Lacs Rs In Lacs
As on 31.03.09 As on 31.03.08
Expected retumn on plan assets —_ —
Actuarial (gain) /loss on plan assets — —
Actual return on plan assets ’ — —
5. Amount recognized in the Balarice Sheet RsIn Lacs Rs In Lacs
. As on 31.03.09 As on 31.03.08
Liability at the end of the year "6.23 15.05-
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year. — —
Difference 623 15.05
Unrecognised past service cost — —_
Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet 6.23 15.05
Expenses recognized in the Income Statement Rs In Lacs Rs In Lacs -
' - As on 31.03.09 As on 31.03.08
Current service cost 1.41 3,65
[nterest cost 1.24 1.44
Expected retum on plan assets - —
Net actuarial (gain) / loss to be recognized 1211 1.27
Expenses recognized in Profit and Loss 6.37

Actual Return on Plan Assets:

14.76

31.  Previous year's figures have been shown in brackets and have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to current
year's classification.

Signatures to Schedules “I” to “XXI”

For and on behalf of the Board

Anil Poddar Surbhit Dabriwala
Director _ ‘Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30, 2009
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i STATEMENT PURSUANT TO PART IV OF SCHEDULE VI TO THE COMPANIES ACT,1956.
N Registration No. ‘ '
Registration No. 1/2]4]2[57-[1]9 [6]2]-[6]3] State Code [112]

Balance Sheet Date  L21 013| [21010[9] {Refer Code List)
‘ Date ° Month Year ‘

Il. . Capital raised during the year (Amount in Rs. Thousand)

.

Public Issue : Rights Issue
} LI L1 [s[g[s]o] LT T T INTL]
| . Bonus lssue : Private Placement -
LI T[T INOTL] LI T [ TTTNTL
IR Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amount in Rs. Thousand)
Total Liabilities ) Total Assets
[ [3[2fe[6]2]2[7] - [ I3[2[e[6]2[2]7]
Sources of Funds .
Paid Up Capital . Reserves & Surplus
| L1 | Is[els[1]7] | [ [ [sl7]o]8[1]2}
; Secured Loans Unsecured Loans
; L[ [sf7[2]s8[8]4] { [ [1]4]4]3[e[3]
J Deferred Tax .
L , ' LI T § T IN[TL]
' Application of Funds
i : Net Fixed Asseis - . Investments
f ' N EENEEEEER : [ T2[s[1[1]5[3l4]
i _ ' Nst Current Assets “Misc. Expanditure
[=[1lojele[2[1]0] : L1 [ [1]7]3[els]
| . Accumulated Losses
| _ HEEEENNN
‘ M. Performance of Company (Amount in Rs, Thousand)
Tumover including (Other Income) Total Expenditure
i L[ [1[sl1]3[2]1] L1 [2[7]s8]1]8]4]
| Profit Before Tax . " Profit After Tax
- L I-T2[7Te[7]0] L1 [-[2]8]3]e]4]
Earnings Per Share in Rs. . Dividend Rate %
LI 7. 127]) ] LI T T 1 INOTL]

! V. General names of Three Principal Products / Services of Company (As per Monetary terms)
| ltem Code No. (ITC Code). [8]5[3[5]4]0[1]0] |

| ' ProdudDescription (LY [G[HITTEINTIINIG] JATRIRTETSITIE[R]

item Code No. (ITC Code) [8]5]3]3]0]0]0]0]

- Product Description IVIA[R{I[S[T[O[R[S{MEIT[ATL[OIX]ITDIE)]

For and on behalf of the Board

Anil Poddar Surbhit Dabriwala
Director : Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30, 2009




Elpro International Ltd.

' CONSOLIDATED AUDITORS’ REPORT

CONSOLIDATED AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Elpro International Limited

1.

We have audited the attached Consolidated Balance Sheet of Elpro International Limited (‘the

Company’), and its subsidiary (collectively referred to as the ‘Group’) as at March 31, 2009, and also .

the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year
ended on that date annexed thereto (collectively referred to as ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’)
which we have signed under reference to this report. These Consolidated Financial Statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management and have been prepared by the Management on the
basis of separate financial statements and other financial information regarding components. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in India.
Those Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether
the financial statements are prepared, in alt material respects, in accordance with an identified financial
reporting framework and are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
inciudes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,

as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiary company whose finanmal statement reflect
total assets of Rs. 4,126.00 lacs as at March 31, 2009 and total revenue of Rs. 30.25 lacs and cash
flow (net cash inflow) amounting to Rs. 2.54 lacs for the year ended March 31, 2009. This financial
statement has been audited by other auditor whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion,

in so far as it relates to the amounts included in respect of this subsidiary, is based soIer oh the report
of the other auditor.

We have relied on the unaudited financial statements of associate company where in Group share of

~ profit for the year aggregate to Rs. 0.12 lacs. This unaudited financial statement as approved by the

Board of Directors of this company has been furnished to us by the Management and our report in so

for as it relates to the amount included in respect of these associate is based solely on such approved
unaudited financial statement.

We report that the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Company in
accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 21, Consolidated Financial Statements
and Accounting Standard (AS) 23, Accounting for investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial
Statements, mandated by Rule 3 of the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2008.

Based on our audit as aforesaid and on the consideration of the report of other auditor on separate
audited financial statements and on the other financial information of the components and accounts
approved by the Board of Directors as explained in paragraph 4 above and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the attached Consolidated
Financial Statements give a true and falr view in conformity with the accountlng principles generally
accepted in India:

a. in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Group as at
March 31, 2009; ‘

b. inthe case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the Loss of the Group for the year
ended on that date; and

c.  -inthe case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows of the Group for the year
ended on that date.

Vilas Y. Rane
Partner -
Membership No. F-33220

For and on behalf of

Mumbai . Price Waterhouse
June 30, 2009 Chartered Accountants




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT MARCH 31, 2009

Annual Report 2008-2009

Schedules As at March 31, 2009 As at March 31, 2008

Rs. Lacs Rs. Lacs
1 SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders’ Funds .
Share capital ' | 39517 . ' 355.67
Share Warrants | ‘ 430.76 —
Share Application Moriey 1 . . 12,576.35 ' 7,543.40
Reservgs and surplus ] 3,184.52 " 1,140.47
: . : ‘ 16,586.80 9,039.54
Minority interest —_— —
Capital reserve on consolidation . 7.35 7.35
Loan Funds
Secured loans _ , ' i - 8,727.20 i 11,430.44
. Unsecured loans v 1,445.78 " 613.09
' 10,172.98 12,052.53
26,767.13 : 21,099.42
it  APPLICATION OF FUNDS T
Goodwill on consolidation : : 73.68 : 81.35
Fixed assets Vv : .
Gross block” _ *4,096.46 T 4,202,37
+ Less : Accumulated Depreciation . - 2,261.47 : 2,185.27
Net block ] o ’ 1,834.99 2,017.10
Capital work in progress including advances _ 4,042.05 : 2,205.55
' © - 5,877.04 - 4,222 65
Investments VI 24,976.21 8,477.25
Deferred tax (Refer Note 4 of Schedule XXI} '
Deferred tax asset ‘ 372.72 © 37311
Less : Deferred tax liability . {320.07) (320.46) -
Deferred tax - Net . ‘ 52.65 52.65
Current assets,loans and advances
Stocks . , Vil _ 1,457.48 1,520.84
Sundry debtors — Vil 224.15 ‘ 516.55
Cash and bank bafances IX 562.77 262.45
Other current assets X ' 30.10 +165.30
Loans and advances Xl S 3,274.83 11,032.96
i 5,549.34 © 7 13,498.10
Less : Current liabilities and Provisions _
Current Liabilities XK '9,922.89 5.241.59
Provisions , _ - Xl 12.59 21.41
. . . 9,935.48 - B,263.00
Net current assets / (current liabilities) {4,386.14) 8,235.10
Miscellaneous Expenditure XV 173.69 30.42
(To the extent not written off) - ' -
: 26,767.13 21,099.42
Notes to accounts ‘ XXI - L
Schedule | to XX1 annexed hereto form part of the
Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account
As per our report of even date attached : For and on behalf of the Board
Vilas Y. Rane ‘ ' ‘ Anil Poddar Surbhit Dabriwala
Partner _ Dirgctor Director

Membership No: F-33220

For and on behalf of
Price Waterhouse
Chartered Accountants

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30, 2009 ‘ Date: June 30, 2009




Elpro International Lid.

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

Schedules

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
. Rs. Lacs - Bs. Lacs
| INCOME : _
Sales and Services - Gross Xv 1,321.35 3,004.46
Less: Excise Duty 58.21 254.59
" Sales and Services - Net : 1,263.14 '2,749.87
Other income Xvi 78.39 230.75
1,341.53 2,980.62
] EXPENDITURE ‘
Materials / Direct cost Xvii 320.28 1,481.18
Employee costs Xvill 166.35 - 321.49
Depreciation Vv 183.06 22987
Interest XX 1,677.76 1,795.48
Other expenses XX 508.89 ©1,060.16
L 2,856.34 4,888.18
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX AND EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS (1,514.81) (1,207.586)
Exceptional item : ‘
Provision for diminution in value of investment no longer ‘
required wiitten back (Refer Note 9 of Schedule XXI ) 1,191.93 -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION _(322.88) ' (1,907.56)
Less: Provision for tax |
— - Current tax - -
-  MAT credit {(14.10) -
—~  Deferred tax reversal - {157.70)
~  Fringe benefit tax 3.33 7.53
—  Prior Period Tax 17.91 (0.10)
PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAXATION (330.02) (1,757.29)
Add : Share of profits of associate 012 3.34
NET PFIOFITI(LOS'S) FOR THE YEAR {329.90) (1,753.95)
- Balance of Profit and Loss Account (brought forward) (1,408.89) 345,06
BALANCE CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET (1,738.79) (1,408.89)
Basic and Diluted Earnings per equity share of face -
(8.44) {49.31)

value of Rs. 10/- each {Refer Note 11 of Schedule XXI)
Notes to Accounts ’

- As per our report of even date attached

Vilas Y. Rane
Partner g
Membership No: F-33220

For and on behalf of
Price Waterhouse
Chartered Accountants

‘Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30, 2009

For and on behalf of the Board

Anil Paddar Surbhit Dabriwala
Director Director
Place: Mumbai

Date: June 30, 2009




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR
THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009

Annual Report 2008-2009

2008-09 2007-08 - .
Rs. Lacs Rs. Lacs
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Cash generated from operations (see note 4) 12,632.78 (7,616.17)
Miscellaneous Expenditure .
- Incurred during the year (275.01) —
Taxes (paid) / refund - net 65.54 (11.21)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 12,423.31 (7,627.38)
B. Cash flow from investing activities : -
Fixed assets
— Purchase " (5.05) (198.38)
—. Sale 11.01 2.25
Investments L
~  Purchase (net) (15,301.64) (2,715.88)
—  Sale / matured (Net) 7.38 383.90
Increase in capital expenditure (1,836.45) (1,954.67)
‘Interest received 21.15 139.16
Dividend received 0.09 0.08
Net cash from / (used in) investing activities {17,103.51) .{4,343.54)
C. Cash flow from finencing activities :
Proceeds from borrowings 3,945.24 . 13,470.34
Repayment of borrowings {6,611.83) . (8,287.04)
Cash credit, Export packing credit, Term Loans, etc. - net (45.61) ' (24.84)
Inter corporate Deposits/loans received 4,521.40 7,226.57
Inter corporate Deposits/loans repaid (2,979.81) - (6,475.40)
Proceeds.from issue of Equity Shares 2,413.45 -
Proceeds from issue of Equity Share Warrants 430.76 -
Share application money received 5,032.95 7,543.40-
Interest Pald on Loans (1,663.08) (1,307.01)
Redemption of Preference Shares ‘ - (1 49.54)
Net cash from / (used in) financing activities 5,043.47 11,996.48
D. Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents : 363.27 25_:56
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 199.50 173.94
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 562.77 ] 199.50
363.27 25.56
Notes:
1. The figures in the cash ﬂow statement are based on or have been derived from the audlted annual financial statements of
Company.
2. Figures in brackets represent outflows of cash and cash equwalents
3. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in Accountlng Standard 3 (AS-3) on
Cash Flow Statement.
4.  Cash generated from cperations has been arrived at as follows :




Elpro International Ltd. A a CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR
‘ - THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2009 (Contd.)

2008-09 2007-08
Rs. Lacs ‘ Rs. Lacs
Proﬂt/(i.oss) before tax . (322.88) ‘ {1,907.56)
Add / (Less) : ' '
a.  Adjustments for non- cash items / items required to be dlsclosed separately .
~  Depreciation - C 183.06 229.87
-~ Miscellaneous Expenditure written off ' 131.74 T 53.25
" — ' Interest expense T 1,663.08 c 1,307.01
- Net (profit)/loss on sale of fixed assets _ (6.29) 18.69
—  Interest income . _ . {21.15) : {139.17)
- Interest income on Income Tax Refund ‘ ) {19.60) -
— . Dividend income (0.09y {0.08}
- Net (proflt)lloss on sale of |nvestments {current) {non-trade) ‘ (5.04) : (7.48)
—  Sundry provisions and balances no longer required written back ' (5.23) _ (21.49)
—  Bad Debts/Advances written off, net of recoveries , - 0.05
- Provision for Bad and Doubtful debts / advances ) 24.00 38.79
—"  Excess Depreciation Written Back - ' ‘ (0 62) -
- Provision for leave encashment (not funded) . ' N - . 524
—  Provision for.dimunition in value of Investments made /(written back) (1 191 93) 4.87
. 751.93 : 1,488.55
" Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 429.05 .(418.01)
b.  Adjustments for changes in working capital - . . ' -
(Increase)/Decrease in stocks 63.36 ’ (983.64)
{Increase)/Decrease in sundry debtors ' 268.39 559.62
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets : T 13520 ‘ (118.00)
{Increase)/Decrease in loans and advances _ 6,996.12 (6,446.17)
Increasef/{Decrease} in current liabilities and prowsmns 4,740.66 (209.97)
12,203.73 {7,198.186)
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 12,632.78 (7,616.17)
5. Cash and cash equivalents comprise of :
2008-09 2007-08
Cash on hand - . 0.40 0.82
Balances with scheduled banks on : ' .
—  Current account ‘ 274.45 ‘ - 258.42
— Margin money account ‘ . - 3.29 2.75
- Deposit account ' . . 28463 0.46
Book Overdraft ' ) - : - {62.95)
’ 562.77 '+ 198.50
' As per our report of even date attached _ " For and on behalf of the Board
" ¥Yilas Y. Rane o . ~ Anil Poddér Surbhit Dabriwala
Partner ’ Director Director

Membership No: F-33220

For and on behalf of
Price Waterhouse
Chartered Accountants

Place: Mumbai ‘ Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30, 2009 * Date: June 30, 2009




SCHEDULES TO AND FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATE
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2009

Annual Report 2008-2009

As at March 31, 2009

As at March 31, 2008

Rs. Lacs Rs. Lacs
I.  SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised . :
10,000,000 (5,000,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each 1,000.00 500.00
, ' 1,000.00 500.00
Issued . '
3,852,000 (3,557,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each 395.20 355.70
Subscribed
3,951,677 (3,556 677) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up T 39517 "~ 355.67
Note:
Of the above shares, 72,000 (72,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each have
been alloted as fully paid up for consideration other than cash.
Equity Share Warrant Issued (Refer Note 6 of Schedule XXD 430.76 —
Equity Share Application Money (Refer Note 6 of Schedule XXI} 12,576.35 7,543.40
Il. RESERVES AND SURPLUS : : :
(@) Share premium : As per last balance sheet 71.40 71.40
Add:- On issue of Equity Shares during the year 2,373.95 —
Total Share Premium (Refer Note 6 of Schedule XXI) 2,445.35 71.40
(b) General reserve : As per last balance sheet 2,300.00 2,300.00
: ‘ 2,300.00 2300.00
Add:- Transferred from Profit and Loss Account - —_
Less:- Debit balance of Profit and Loss Account (1,738.79) {1,408.89)
Total General Reserve . 561.21 . 891.11
() Amalgarmation Reserve : As per last balance sheet date 177.96 177.96
(d) Profit and loss account :
Balarice as per annexed account - . —
3,184.52 ° 1,140.47
lll. SECURED LOANS ¥
Leans from banks ‘ :
a)  Cash Credit/Packing Credit/Working Capital Demand 459.41 505.02
Loan from Banks secured by hypothecation of current
assets and certain moveable property
b)  Term ioan secured by hypothecation of certain cars 7.67 18.98
[Repayable in one year Rs 7.58 lacs (Rs 3.39 lacs)]
¢) Term loan secured by hypothecation of Windmills _ 424,05 469.99 .
[Repayable'in one year Rs. 106.80 lacs (Rs 60.39 lacs)j
d)  Term loan secured by hypothecation of rent —_ 468.46
receivables & equitable morigage of certain buildings
[Repayable in one year Rs Nil (Rs 80.17 lacs)] .
e) Term Loan - Refer Note (1) below ' 5,715.32 3,543.16
[Repayable in one year Rs Nil {Rs. 1,400 iacs)]
[Includes interest accrued and due Rs 65.31 lacs (Rs 43.15 lacs)]
f) - Term loan secured by hypothecation of Company’ flat 343.33 425.91
[Repayable in one year Rs 136.07 lacs (Rs 83 lacs)] -
{Includes interest accrued and due Rs 3.97 Iacs (Rs 9 53 lacs)] h
Loan from Others
a) Term Loan SICCM - Refer Note (1) below 1,773.06 —_

[Repayable in one year Rs 1,750 lacs (Rs. Nil )]
[Includes interest accrued and due Rs. 23.06 Lacs (Rs. Nif)]




Elpro International Lid.

HEDULES TO AND FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2009

As at March 31, 2009

As at March 31, 2008

Rs. Lacs Rs. Lacs ~
b) DSP Merrili Lynch Capital Limited- Refer Note (2) below — 6,000.00
[Repayable in one year Rs Nil (Rs 2,400.00 lacs)] _ '
¢)  Term loan secured by hypothecation of certain cars ‘ 4.36 - 7.92
(Repayable in one year Rs 4.00 lacs (Rs 4.31 lacs)) - U
. 8,727.20 11,439.44

Notes:

1 Secured by exclusive morigage of immovable property, exclusive charge on cash flows and collection account arising
out of the project,unconditional and irrecovable corporate guarantee and pledge of shares of a subsidiary company and
persocnal guarantee of promoters .

2  The said loan has been assigned to State Bank of Patiala and SICOM Limlted dunng the year.

IV  UNSECURED LOANS
‘ Inter-corporate Deposits - Short term

- From other than banks 1,445.78 613.09
(Repayable on demand) JUN— N
) 1,445.78 " 613.09
V.  Fixed Assets - _ {Rs. Lacs)
Gross Block Depreciation Net Biock
Particulars Costason| Additions & | Deletions& | Costason: Ason | Forthe | Deletions | Totalason Ason Ason
. ’ 01.04.2008 | Adjustments | Adjustments | 31.03.2009 | 01.04.2008 year 31.03.2009 | 31.03.2009 | 31.03.2008
Tangible Assets
Land - freehold 3.02 - - 3.02 - —_ — — 3.02 3.02
Buildings roads :
and Structures 979.11 — - 979.11 202.09 18.32 220.41 75870  777.02
Plant and machinery 1,204.84 347 110.96 1,097.35 922.26 37.03 106.86 852.43 244.92 282.58
(including office :
equipments) -
Furniture and fixtures 254.83 142 — 256.25 35.15 16.75 - 51.90 204.35 219.68
Vehicles 103.76 — - 103.76 | . 5413 9.07 — 63.20 40.56 49.63
Windmill 768.02 — — 768.02 138.60 79.41 L — 218.01 550.01 629.42
- : .3,313.58 4.89 110.96 3,207.51 1,352.23 160.58 106.86 | - 1,405.95 1,801.56 | 1,961.35
Intangible Assets ’ ' .
Specialised Software 185.39 0.16 - 185.55 129.66 2248 — 152.14 33.41 55.73
. Technical Knowhow 39.61 - —_ 39.61 39.59 — —o 39.59 0.02 0.02
Assets given '
on Lease ’
Plant and Machinery 663.79 — — 663.79 663.79 —_— — 663.79 e —
Total (A): 4,202.37 5.05 110.96 4,096.46 2,185.27 183.06 10686 | 2,261.47 1,834.99  2,017.10
Capital work In : '
progress includes
capital advances
{Refer Note 17 of
Schedule XX) 4,122.43) 228593
Less: Provision for .
doubtfu! advances {80.38) (80.38)
Total {B): ‘ _ 4,042.05 | 2,205.55
Total (A + B): 4,202.37 5.05 110.96 4,096.46 2,185.27 183.06 106.86 | 2,261.47 5877.04| 422265
Previous year 4,388.48 198.38 384.49 4,202.37 2,318.95 229.87 36355 | 2,185.27 2,017.10
VI INVESTMENTS {Non trade)
LONG TERM - UNQUOTED, AT COST
Government Securities : _
—  B/7 year National Savings Certificate * ) 0.10 0.10
— Kisan Vikas Patra * 0.1 0.11
Others
— 226,671,247 (84,166,952) fully paid equity shares of Rs.10 each in )
Metlife India Insurance Company Limited ** 23,868.55 .9,618.12 .

Less : Provision for Dimunition in value of investment

1,191.83




SCHEDULES TO AND FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDAT
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2009

Annual Report 2008-2009

As at March 31, 2009

As at March 31, 2008
Rs. Lacs . Rs. Lacs
— 23 (23) equity shares of US$ 1,000 each in Glenwood Pte. Limited, Singapore. 10.04 10.04
— 226,977 (226,977) fully paid equity shares of Rs.10 each in Dabri Properties &
Trading Company Limited 3330 33.19
— 2500 (2500) fully paid equity shares in The Saraswat Co-op Bank Ltd 0.25 0.25
LONG TERM - QUOTED, AT COST :
— . 440 (440) fully paid equity shares of As 2 each in Financial Technologies 7.01 ' 7.01
— 795,900 (1,533,900) fully paid up equity shares of Rs 10 each . ’
in Elpro Packaging Ltd -3.98 o —
CURRENT INVESTMENTS - UNQUOTED, LOWER OF COST AND FAIR VALUE
— 72,107.89 (2,310.74) units Kotak Gilt Saving Growth Fund 0.43 ' 0.36
—  5,778,042.40 (Nil) Units Of Reliance Mutual Fund - Reliance .
Retail plan Growth plan Growth Option 1,050.00 —
— 20223 ( Nil) units of Templeton India Treasury
Management Account Regular Plan 2.44 —
: - 24,976.21 8,477.25
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments (net of prowsmns)
Cost 24,965.22 8,470.23
Aggregate amount of quoted investments .
Cost 10.99 . 7.01°
Market value 10.99 ' 7.01
* Lodged with Government authorities,
**  There are certain restrictions on transferability of these shares.
Units of Mutual Funds purchased and sold during the year No..of Units
‘ ‘Purchased Sold
Name of the Scheme ‘
Templeton India treasury Management Account - Regular F'lan 202.23 -
Kotak Gilt Savings Growth . 2,107.90 2,310.70
Reliance Mutual Fund- Reliance Retail plan Growth plan Growth Option 11,845,631.50 6,066,589.10
VIl STOCKS
Stores and spares 7.48 8.78
Raw materials and components 65.10 . 117.75
Work in progress 70.42 _ 172.60
Finished goods 1.02 8.33
Land held as stock in trade 0.95 0.95
Project in Progress - Commercial Division - . — ’ 861.18
Project in Progress - Housing Division 1,312.51 351.25
: 1,457.48 1,520.84
VIl 'SUNDRY DEBTORS
" (Unsecured)
Over six months
—  Considered good 192.86 152.48
—  Considered doubtful 59.16 - 36.00
252.02 188.48
Other debt - considered good 31.29 364.07
i . . 283.31 . 552.55
Less : Provision for doubtful debts (59.16) . (36.00)
22415 516.55
IX CASH AND BANK BALANCES ’ .
Cash on hand 0.40 . 0.82
Balance with scheduled banks on
Current account * 27445 ~258.42
Margin money account 3.29 275
Fixed Deposit account . 284.63 : 0.46
[Under Lien Rs 284.17 lacs (Nil)]

* Includes balances in unclaimed dividend account Rs 2.32 lacs (Rs 3.49 lacs)

562.77 . 262.45.




SCHEDULES TO AND FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2009

Elpro International Ltd.

As at March 31, 2009 As at March 31, 2008

Rs. Lacs Rs. Lacs
X  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS .
Interest receivable ' . - 88.70
Claims receivable 20.81 : 21.67
Price Variance claim receivable _ - 917 49.82
Other receivables : ‘ ' 0.12 5.11
' - 30.10 ‘ » 165.30
Xl LOANS AND ADVANCES
Unsecured - Considered good
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received : .
for value to be received ~ 16112 N 3,110.52
Advances to contractors - : — - 1,541.16
Advances to Suppliers. " 16549 - 13.23
Balance with customs, excise, VAT and other Statutory authorities and ‘
Security deposits ) 106.82 65.87
- Advance Tax / TDS / Refund due from Income tax department . 285.14 352,32
Advance Fringe Benefit Tax (Net) - : 1.89 . 1.89
MAT Credit entitlement 1410 - —
Advance towards share application in Metlife India Insurance Company Limited 2,500.00 C 5,185.71
Loans to and deposits with companies ' 31.98 . 740.90
Advance to Gratuity Trust : 8.30 21.36
Considered doubtful ' : )
Loans to and deposits with companies (including interest accrued thereon) 51.95 51.95
Less : Provision for doubtfut loans {51.95) (51.95)
3,274.84 - 11,032.96
Xl CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors . : '
-~  Due to Small and Medium Enterprises —_ .=
— Due to Others ' - - 337.51 651.00
Other Liabilities _ _ 79.18 573.40
Advance-from Customers N ' : 32.16 60.77
Advance from Sale /Lease ) 5,299.06 3,243.11
“Advance against bookings _ o '3,624.22 329.21
Book Overdraft ) ; : ) —_— . 62.95
Dividend warrants pested but not encashed oo 7189 3.07
Rental Deposits received S : . . 548.87 ‘ 318.08
‘ ' 9,922.89 . 5,241.59
Xl PROVISIONS
Taxation - provision less payments (net) including
tax on proposed dividend ‘ " - 1.82 . 1.82
Provision for leave encashment - . : 6.23 _ 15.05
Warranty & Cther provisions - ’ : ' 4,54 : 4.54
: 12.59 2141
XIV. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE )
(To the extent not written off) '
Compensation paid under Voluntary Retirement Scheme (VRS)
(Refer Note 16 of Schedule XXI) . :
"Opening balance ' : : 3042 - 83.66
Add : Incurred during the year 275.01 —
Less: Amortised during the year ‘ 131.74 - . 53.24

Closing balance : _ 173.69 : ' 30.42




- SCHEDULES TO AND FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED

PROFIT& LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE MARCH 31, 2009

Annual Report 2008-2009

Year ended " Year ended
March 31, 2009 " March 31, 2008
Rs. Lacs Rs Lacs
XV SALES AND SERVICES : . . . .
Gross Sales o " 603.37 2,300.24 -
Income from services : ) 30.25 "49.53
" Income from Windmill ' 89.97 59.61
Income from lease rentals : 508.55 331.83
Sale of scrap and other items - : ) 21.00 8.86
1,263.14 2,749.87
XVi OTHER INCOME '
: Interest on inter-cotporate deposits/oans, bank deposits, _
income tax, etc. (gross) ) 21.15 139.17
- Tax deducted at source Bs.3.79 lacs (Rs. 30.63 lacs) .
Bividend from current investments (Refer Note below) - . ’ 0.09 0.08
Buty drawback ‘ . 6,53 15.86
Sundry provisions and credit balances no longer required written back . 5.23 21.49
Miscellaneous income . 1.50 46.67
Exchange gain (net) 12.96 =
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets . : ] 6.29 —
Profit on sale of current investments (Net) 5.04 7.48
Interest On Income Tax Refund - . . 19.60 e
' ' ‘ ' 78.39 230.75
Note -
Dividend Income Includes .
1)  Dividend Income from Long Term Investment (Non-Trade) . 0.05 - 0.08
2)  Dividend from Mutual Fund _ ' 0.04 —
XVIl MATERIALS
Consumption of raw materlal and bought out components
Opening stock : 118.62 228.50
Add: Purchases (including outside processing charges) o _ 135.35 1,353.71
o 253.97. 1,582.21
Less: Closing Stock - 65,97 . 118.62 .
Raw Material Consumed ) ' 188.00 1,463.59
Other Direct material cost : 22.79 36.09
(lncrease)IDecrease in stock of finished goods /
and work -in- progress’
Opening stocks _
Work-in-progress ‘ 172,60 155.11
Finished goods ‘ ‘ - 8.33 7.32
B " 180.93 162.43
Closing stocks . ) :
Work-in-progress -~ - ‘ : : - 70.42 172.60 .
Finished goods ‘ f _ 1.02 8.33
o 71.44 180.93
{Increase)/Decrease in stocks ) ' _ 109.49 _ (18.50}
' ' 320,28 1,481.18
XVIll EMPLOYEE COSTS , .
Salaries, wages and bonus - o : 118.81 258.88
Contribution to Provident and other Funds - 7.13 21.21
Gratuity _ - : 14.96 - 6.47
Leave encashment . ‘ - 14.76 7.53
Welfare expenses’ : ' _ . ' 10.69 27.40
~ ' ' 166.35 321.49

o]
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HEDULES TO AND FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED

PROFIT& LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE MARCH 31, 2009

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008
Rs. Lacs Rs Lacs
XIX INTEREST AND FINANCE CHARGES
Interest~
—  On loans for fixed periods 1,445.34 711.71
—  Others 217.74 595.30
1,663.08 1307.01 .
Finance charges
Processing / upfront fees —_ 44719
Bank charges 14.68 41.28
14.68 488.47
1,677.76 1,795.48
XX OTHER EXPENSES :
Stores consumed 13.46 77.46
Power and fuel {net of recoveries) - 22.89 164.36
Travelling and conveyance 36.97 50.26
Foreign Travelling Expenses 4.69 19.78
Repairs to machinery - 2.850 20.63
Repairs to building 4.23 0.81
Other repairs and maintenance 14.28 27.42
Insurance ' 4.86 6.42
Hent 27.56 15.68
Rates and taxes 13.49 18.39
Directors’ fees 1.11 1.08
Commission 5.41 16.16
Penalties for late deliveries (net of recoveries) 0.03 3.04
. Telephone, Telegram & Telex 8.72 13.97
Provision for Bad and Doubtful debts 24.00 8.53
Provision for Bad and Doubtful advances — 30.26
Bad Debts / Advances written off {net of recoveries) — 0.05
Legal and Professional charges 86.38 369.79
Freight outward (net of recoveries) 14.34 34.71
Miscellaneous Expenditure written off 131.74 53.25
Diminution in value of investment —— 4.87
Loss on sale of Fixed assets (Net) — 18.69
Exchange loss (net) T - 7.51
Miscellaneocus expenses . ) 90.23 97.04
'508.89

~ 1,080.16
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XXI SCHEDULES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2009 . - . : ‘

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

a)

b)

c)

L4

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP")
under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis and are in conformity with mandatory accounting standards, as
prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards ) Rules, 2008, the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and
guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEB).

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2009 comprise of the audited financial statements
of Elpro International Limited (‘the Conipany’), its subsidiary Elpro Estates Limited (formerly known as “Trump Properties
Limited") and Unaudited financial statements of associate companies - Dabri Properties & Trading Company Limited
and Elpro Packaging Limited (ceased to be an associate with effect from November 24, 2008). The consolidated
financiai statements have been prepared on the following basis. '

i) In respect of Subsidiary Companies, the financial statements have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by
adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after fully eliminating
intra-group balances and unrealised profits / losses on intra-group transactions as per Accounting Standard

(AS —21) “Consolidated Financial Statements™. The results of subsidiaries are included from the date of acquisition
of a controlling interest.

i) ~ The excess of cost to the Company of its investment in the Subsidiary Company is recognised in the financial
statements as Goodwill, which is tested for impairment on every balance sheet date. The excess of Company’s
share of equity and reserves of the Subsidiary Company over the cost of acquisition is treated as Capital Reserve.

iify  Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of the amount of equity aftributable to the

- minority shareholders at the dates on which investments are made by the Company in the subsidiary companies
‘and further movements in their share in the equity, subsequent to the dates of investments.

. v} The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions

and other events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the
Company’s separate financial statements, except in case of a subsidiary company, Elpro Estates Limited (Formerly
known as ‘Trump Properties Limited’), depreciation is provided on written down value basis instead of straight line
hasis as followed in Elpro International Limited. The total amount of net block of these items of fixed assets
represents 2.69% of the total consolidated fixed assets of the Group as at the year end. ’

v)  The consolidated financial statements include the share of profit/ loss of associate companies, which are accounted
under the 'Equity method’ as per which the share of profit of the associate company has been added to the cost of
investment. An associate is an enterprise in which the investor has significant influence and which is neither a
subsidiary nor a joint venture. : ‘ )

vi)  The difference between the cost of investment in the associates and the share of net assets at the time of acquisition
of shares in the associate is identified in the financial statement as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be.

vii)  Investment other than in subsidiary and associates have been accounted as per Accounting Standard (AS
13" Accounting for Investments”, . _ :

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires Management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities and disclosure relating fo contingent liabilities as
at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period. Examples of
such estimates include provision for doubtful debts, future obligations under employee retirement benefit plans, incorne

- taxes and the useful lives of fixed assets and intangible assets. -

Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of financial statements are prudent and reasonable.
Future results could differ from these estimates.

Fixed assets and depreciation

i) Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less depreciation. Cost comprises of purchase price .
and other costs directly attributable to the purchase or acquisition of the assets and costs attributable to bringihg
the asset to its present location and condition for the intended use. . ‘

ii)* Depreciation is provided on straight line method, except for assets acquired prior to January 1, 1987 and all
assets of subsidiary, which are depreciated on reducing balance method, at the rates and in the manner specified
in Schedule XV to the Companies Act, 1956 as applicable from time to time, except for assets costing less than
Rs. 5,000 each which are fully depreciated in the year of purchase. ' . ‘

iy Capital work in progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects under development and are
carried at 'cos_t. Cost includes land, related acquisition expenses, construction costs, borrowing-costs capitalized
and other direct expenditure and advances to contractors and others. : '

"
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f)

9)

h)

)

k)

Investments

Long-term investments are valued at cost. Provisions for dlmmutlon if any in the value of mvestments is made to
recognise a decline, other than temporary.

Current investments are stated at the lower of cost and fair value, computed individually for éach mvestment In case of
investments in mutual funds which are unquoted, net assets value is taken as fair value.

‘Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net reaiiséble value. In determining the cost of loose tools, stores and
spares, raw materials and components, the weighted average method is used. Cost of manufactured components,
work in progress and manufactured finished goods include cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition which is determlned on absorption cost basis.

Inventories - Project in progress

Project in progress is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, Cost |nc|udes cost of !and materials, construction,
services, borrowing costs and other overheads relating to the particular projects.

Sundry Debtors and Loans and Advances
Specific debts and advances identified as irrecoverable or doubtful are written off or provided for, respectively.
Foreign exchange transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the prevailing exchange rates on the transact:on dates. Realised
gains and losses on.settlement of foreign currency transactions are recognized in the profit and loss account, except
those relating to fixed assets acquired from outside India till March 31, 2007, which were adjusted in the carrying cost of
such fixed assets.

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the year end are translated at the year end exchange rates and
resultant exchange differences are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Revenue recognition

i) ‘Sale of goods is recognised on despatch to customer and are recorded net of sale tax and excise duties

and excludes export incentives such as duty drawbacks .Jncome from services rendered is recognized on
completion of work.

i)  Rental income is recognised on accrual basis.

iy  Income from Joint development of property will be recognized, when Sa[e Deed will be executed in favour of the
third party.

iv) Hevenus from wind mill power pro;ect is recognised on the basis of actual power sold as per the terms of the
-+ power purchase agreements entered into with the respective parties.

v): - Income from projects is recognized on the transfer of all significant risks and rewards of ownership t6 the buyers
and it is not unreasonable to expect ultimate collection and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount
of consideration. However if, at the time of transfer, substantial acts are yet to be performed under the agreement,
revenue is recognized on proportionate basis as the acts are performed, i.e. on the percentage of completion
basis. Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily involves making estimates
by the Company, some of which are of a technical nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentages of completion,

" gosts to completion, the expected revenues from the project and the foreseeable Iosses to completion,
Such estimates have been relied upon by the auditors. .

Research and development expenditure
Research and development expendlture other than capltal expendlture is expensed out as and when incurred.

Retirement benefits ‘ . . -

—~ - Gratuity :

i Liablifities with regard to the gratuity benefits payable in future are determined by actuarial valuation at each
Balance Sheet date using the Projected Unit Credit method and contributed to Employees Gratuity Fund managed
by Life Insurance Corporation of India. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptlons
are recognized in the Profit and Loss account in the period which they arise.

— l.eave encashment

The Company provides for the encashment of leave with pay subject to certain rules. The employees are entitled
to accumulate leave subject to certain limits, for future encashment/availment. The liability is provided based on

" the number of days of unutilized leave at each balance sheet date on the basis of an independent actuarial
valuation. .

—  Provident fund .
Provident fund contributions are made to a trust admlnlstered by the Company and are charged to the Profit and

loss account, The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall if any, between return of investment by '

the trust and government admlnlstered interest rate.
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m)

)]

Q

r)

s)

Ty

Provisions

Provision is made when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of
economic resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent
liability is made, when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an

outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of

outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

i) Liquidated damages/penalties are provided for meeting the obligations arising from delay‘in contractual delivery
schedules. )

iy Provision for probable warranty claim is based on Management's estimate and judgment and is provided as a
percentage of average claims of past three years for average warranty period of 18 months.

Miscellaneous expenditure (to the extent not written off) :

Compensation paid under Voluntary Retirement Scheme to be ammortised fully upto March 31, 2010, as per the

provisions of Accounting Standard 15 — on Employee Benefits, : :

Assets Taken and Given on Lease

Assets taken on lease:;

a.  Inrespectof finance lease arrangements,‘ the assets are capitaliied and depreciated. Finance charges are charged
off to the Profit and Loss account of the year in which they are incurred.

b.  Operating lease payments are recognized as expenditure in the Profit and Loss account on straight line basis,
representative of the time pattern of benefits received from the use of the assets taken on lease. '
Asset given on lease: : : '

Lease rentals are accounted on accrual basis in accordance with the respective lease agreements.
Accounting for taxes on income :

Provision for current tax is made, based on the tax payable under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Minimum Alternative Tax
(MAT) credit, which is equal to the excess of MAT (calculated in accordance with provisions of section 115JB of the
Income tax Act, 1961} over normal income-tax is recognized as an asset by crediting the Profit and Loss Account only
when and to the extent there is convinging evidence that the Company will be able to avail the said credit against normal
tax payable during the period of seven succeeding assessment years. ’ '

Deferred tax on timing differences between taxable income and accounting income Is accounted for, using the tax rates
and the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted as on the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed tax
losses and unabsorbed tax depreciation are recognised only when there i§ a virtual certainty of their.realisation. Other

_deferred tax assets are recognised only when there is a reasonable certainty of their realisation.

Impairment

The Company reviews the carrying value of tangible and intangible assets for any possible impairment at each balance
sheet date. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing the recoverable amount, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at appropriate
discount rates. '

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but'thelr existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non -occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within control of
the Company. A provision is made based on a reliable estimate when it is probable that an cutflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle an obligation at the year end date. Contingent assets are not
recognized or disclosed in the firancial statements.

Segment Reporting

Segments have been identified having regard to the dominant source and nature of risks and retums and the
internal organisation and management structure. Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis of market price.
Unallocated corporate expenses include revenue and expenses which relate to the enterprise as a whole and are
not attributable to segments.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Costs that afe attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset is capitalized as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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.2, Particulars of a subsidiary and associates

Name of the Company Country of - Percentage of ownership Percentage of ownership-
incorporation | interest as at march 31, 2009 | interest as at March 31, 2008
Subsidiary (Held Directly) ' ' - o
(a) Elpro Estates Limited
(Formerly known as
‘Trump Properties Limited’) | India_ -99.95% 99.95%
Associates
(a) Dabri Properiies & . -
Trading Con?pany Limited | India 31.77% 31.77%
{b) Elpro Packaging Limited
(ceased to be an associate
w.e.f. November 24, 2008} | India — 27.75%
| ' 2008-09 2007-08
Rs. Lacs Rs. Lacs
3. i. . Estimated amount of contracts remaining.to be executed :
on capital account and net provided for 9,164.36 4,503.00
ii.  Contingent liabilities nct provided for: .
a.  Income tax maiters in dispute at various stages of appeal 237.13 237.13
b. Excise duty : 9.75 - 7.52
¢.  Service tax 475 4.75
d. Employee related matters Amount not Amount not
ascertainable ascertainable
e. Sales tax matters : .34.09 18.18
f.  Other maiters : . 37.58 37.58
g. Bank guarantees {secured by hypothecation of current assets) 167.55 386.98
h. Corporate guarantees 6,500.00 ‘ 2.95
i.  Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts - 267.00 267.00
4.  Break up of Deferrtd Tax asset / liability (net)
' L. Break-up of deferred tax liabllity as at March 31, 2009
Additional depreciation on fixed asssts for tax purposes due to
. higher tax depreciation rates. : 320.07 320.46
Total deferred tax liability 320.07 320.46
ii. Break-up of deferred tax asset as at March 31, 2009
Nature of timing difference .
Provision for doubtful debis/advances that are deducted for .
tax purposes when written off. 47.43 36.71
On provision for employee benefits / voluntary retirement :
scheme compensation . 19.23 7.10 -
On other items ' ' 4.37 ‘ 4.66 .
Tax credit for the year 2005-06 ufs 115JAA _ 3.99 ’ 3.99
On unabsorbed depreciation allowance and brought forward business lo .297.70 320.65
Deferred tax asset ' 372.72 . 37311
Net deferred tax asset 52.65

52.65

Note:

As at March 31, 2009, the Company has carry forward losses under the Tax Laws. As a matter of prudence the .
- Company has recognized deferred tax assets only to the extent of deferred tax liabilities as at March 31, 2009. However,
in case of the Subsidiary company, deferred tax asset has been recognized during the previous year, based on the
estimate of management, there is a virtual certainty of its realization.

5. Warranty provision

Carrying forward as at the beginning of the year 4.54 4.54
Additional provision made during the year —_ —
Amount used during the year —_ —
Unused amount reversed during the year - L

Carrying amount as at the end of the year S 454 454 '
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. Changes in Share 'capital

Proceeds received from issue and conversion of Warrants : ' o Amount
' . R Rs. Lacs
1 1 | 10% of 1,100,000 equity share warrants at Rs. 611 each ' 672.10
2. | 90% on conversion of 395,000 warrants into equity shares at Rs 611 each ' 2,172.11
3. | 90% on exercise of conversion options 365,000 warrants by warrant hoider ) 2,007.13
Total _ A 4,851.34

The money received on account of issue of equity shares /shares warrants has been invested /utilized as foliows:
Particulars ' C : Amount
) ) Rs. Lacs
Property development operations ‘ 357.63
Repayments of existing debts of a subsidiary - ' 1,276.65
Repayments of existing debts _ ‘ 773.42
Temporarily Invested in Mutual fund and inter corporate deposit given 769.91
Invested in Met Life India Insurance Company Limited : 1,661.59
General corporate purpose : 12.14
Total . 4,851.34

2

A During the year the authorized share capital of the Company is increased from Rs 50,006,000 divided into
5,000,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each to Rs 100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000 equity shares of Rs 10 each.

B During the year, the Company has issued converiible equity share warrants and has also issued equity shares on
the conversion of share warrants. The details of which are given below: ‘

1,100,000 convertible Warrants issusd on a preferential basis to foreign institutional investors carrying an entitlement

to apply for-allotment of one Equity share of Rs. 10 each ata premium of Rs 601 per share on following terms and
conditions. ’ ) :

(i) = The Warrants shall be convertible (at the sole option of the warrant holders) at any time within a petiod of 18
- months from the date of allotment of warrants.
(i} Each Warrant shall be convertible into one Equity Share of Rs. 10 /- each apportioned towards the Equity
~ shares and the balance amount paid against each warrant towards the share premium.

(i) The Warrant holder(s) shall, before the date of allotment shall pay an amount equivalent to 10 % of the
consideration per warrant. :

towards subscription to each Equity share.

(v) The amount referred to in (jii) shall be forfeited if the option to acquired shares is not exercised within a
period of 18 months from the date of aliotment of warranis. :

(vi) The lock in of Equity Shares allotted by Allotiees by the exercise of Warrants shall be for a peﬁod of 1(one)
year reduced to the extent of holding period of Warrants. . ‘

«(vii) The Warrant holder shall be entitled to future issue of bonus frights if any of Equity Shares or Warrants
convertible into equity share or such other securities by the Company in same proportion and in manner as
any other shareholders of the Company, provided the warrant are converted into Equity shares before such
corporate action. The Warrant holder's will be intimated about any such corporate action appropriately.

{viii) The Warrant by itself does not give to the holder{s) thereof any right of the shareholder's of the Company.

The total proceeds received and utilized by the Company is as follows:

Further, during the year the Subsidiary Company has received Fis.3,025.82- lacs (Previous Year Rs.7,543.40 lacs) as
share application money from M/s Expania Investments Limited, Cyprus against which no allotment of equity shares
has been done during the year. '

As per RBI - AP DIR Circular No.20 dated 14 December 2007 the time Emit for allotment of equity shares has been
restricted to 180 days from the date of foreign inward remittance. The limit of 180 days has expired in the case of the
foreign inward remittance of Rs.7,543.40 lacs, which was received in the month of February 2008. : :

The Company has appiied to RBI vide letter RBI/FC-GPR/08-09/67 dated 27-02-2009 through its authorized bank —
HDFC Bank Limited, Pune requesting approval for issue of Equity shares upto 31 March , 2009. However, the approval
from RBI is pending till date. Hence , allotment of equity shares has not been done during the year.

Derivative transactions . .

The Company has not entered into any derivative contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk. N _

The net unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the year-end amounted to USD 1.55 lacs {Previous year USD 1.86 lacs).
The Investment in Elpro Packaging Limited has been stated at an estimated realisable amount.

(iv) TheWarrant holder{s) shall, on the date of exercise of conversion option pay balance 90 % of the consideration
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10.

Investments’ being made in Met life India Insurance Company Limited is long term in nature. In the opinion of the
management the realisable value of these investments is more than the book value as at March 31, 2009. During the
year, the Company reviewed the provision made in an earlier year for diminution in value of investments in Met Life
India Insurance Company Limited. Accordingly, the said provision was written back fully as considered no longer required

- and disclosed as an exceptional item.

Related party disclosures . A
(@) Names of related parties and nature of relationship where transactions have taken place during the year.

1.  Faridabad Irvestment Co. Lid. Investing party/promoter company.

2. Dabri Properties & Trading Co. Ltd. Associate ' .

3.  International Conveyors Limited Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel

' exercise significant influence

4.  Mr. Surbhit Dabriwala Key Management Personnel

5. M. R. K. Dabriwala Key Management Personnel

6. Elpro Packaging Limited (Ceases to be Associate

an associate w.e.f. November 24, 2008,

7. IGE () Ltd. Enterprise over which promoter company
: ' exercise significant influence

8. Faridabad Capital Holding Pvt Limited Enterprise over which Key Management

Personnel exercise significant influence
{b) Nature and volume of transactions during the year with the above related parties were as follows:

) Investing party : Faridabad Investment Co Lid

March 31,2009 March 31,2008
{Rs. Lacs) {Rs. Lacs)
" Nature of transactions
Transactions during the year .
1)  ICD Given - 225.00 670.00
2)  Repayment received on ICD's given ‘ 1,024.86 100.00
3) Interest Income 9.01 63.24
Balances :
1)  Receivables ' 715 799.86
iy  Associate : Dabri Properties & Trading Co Ltd
Nature of transactions
Transactions during the year . . ) : .
1)  Repayment made on ICD's taken S 0.43 - . 817
2) Interest expense : Nil 0.56
Balances ‘
1) Payable Nil 0.43

iii) Associate : Elpro Packaging Ltd (ceases to be an associate from November 24, 2008)
Nature of transactions ‘ '
Transactions during the year ‘ ‘
1)} ICD received ' . Nil 189.42

2) Repayment made on ICD’s taken 164.75 125.00
3) Interest expense . Nil - 15.38
Balances

1) Payable , Nil , 209.17

iv)  Enterprise over which Key management Personnel have significant influence :
International Conveyors limited
Nature of transactions
Transactions during the year

1) 1CD received _ 3,348.00 ' 410.00
2) Repayment made on ICD’s taken . 3,350.00 410.00
3) Interest expense - 18.80 2.30
4)  Advance Received towards bookings . 2,300.00 ' Nil
Balances ‘ _ : o

1) Payable 14.32 1.78

2) Advance receive towards bookings 2,300.00 Nil
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11.

12.

March 31,2009 March 31,2008
{Rs. Lacs) {Rs. Lacs)

v}  Enterprise over which Key management Personnel have significant influence :
Faridabad Capital Holding Pvt Lid. .
Nature of transactions
Transactions during the year

1)  ICD Given : 1.00 o Nil
Balances : t
1} Receivable - 1.00 Nil

Vi) Enterprise over which Promoter Company exercise Slgnlflcant mfluence IGE (Indla) Ltd
Nature of transactions
Transactions during the year

1)  ICD received 6,073.00 5,055.50
2) Repayment made on ICD's taken ' 5,018.99 5,413.06
3) Interest expense : 92,80 18268
4)  Rent and other expenses 20.73 491
5) Corporate guarantee given 6,500.00 : Nil.
6) Loans given 866.00 Nil
Balances '

1) Payable : i 1,248.95 209.42

vii) Key Management Personnel : Mr S.Dabriwala

Nature of transactions

Transactions during the year

1) Remuneration _ ' 9.33 ' 8.74
viii) Relative of Key Management Personnel : Mr R.K Dabriwala

Nature of transactions

Transactions during the year

1)  Director’s Sitting fees 017 0.18
Earning per share o 2008-09 . 2007-08
Profit /(Loss) after tax and exceptional items (Rs. Lacs) {329.90) (1,753.95)
Weighted average number of equity shares used for calculatlng
basic earnings per share . 3,907,307 3,556,677
Weighted average number of equity shares used for calculating . .
diluted earnings per-share . ) - 3,907,307 3,556,677
Face value of Equity Shares (Rs.) , .10 10
Earning per share- Basic & Diluted (Rs.) : {8.44) . - (49.31)

The share warrants outstanding as on March 31, 2009 are considered antidilutive as fair value of equity shares to be
issued is less than the issue price. .

During the previous year, the Company converted land admeasuring 0. 41Lacs Sq.Ft. situated at _Chinchwadgaon,
Pune as stock in trade. Consequently Rs 0.08 lacs, being cost of converted land has been reduced from fixed assets
and shown separately in ‘Schedule VII- Stocks” as “Land held as stock in trade” ’
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13. Primary Business Information (Business Segments)
{a) These business segments represent primary basis of information set out in the financial statements. In accordance

with the Accounting Standard 17, ‘Segment Reporting’, the Segment.Information for the year ended March 31, 2009
is given as follows: ‘ .

Electrical Real | Investment Others | Elimination Total
Equipments Estate Activity (Rs. in lacs)
. Segment Revenue .
External Sales 624.37 520.55 — 130.22 — 1275.14
(2,198.02) (343.63) (— | (23022 =) (77187
Inter - segment Sales — (12.00) —_ — {12.00) . (12.00)
(~22.00) ) ) =) (~22.00) (~22.00)
Segment Revenue 624.37 508.55 —_ 130.22 ' 1,263.14
(2,176.02) (343.63) —) (230.22) (2,749.87)
Segment Result "~ {158.78) 506.85 — 26.06 —| 375.93
' (—129.96) (342.73) =) (101.23) ) (314.00)
Unallocated corporate '
expenses (net of unallocable
income} : 212.98
" {426.08)
Operating profit/(loss) 162,95
_ . (112.08)
Interest Expenses 1,677.76
, (1,795.48)
Profit / (Loss) before Tax & _
exceptional item {1,514.81)
' (-1,907.56)
Exceptional item 1,191.83
(=)
- Profit / (Loss) before tax &
after exceptional item (322.88)
(~1,907.56)
Income Tax/Deferred
tax Reversal (7-14)
(150.27)
Net Profit /(Loss ) after tax {330.02)
; ~ 1,757.29)
Other information ‘
Segment assets ~ .818.26 1,951.29 26,426.22 551.01 29,746.78
p (1,358.84) | {5,004.34) () (708.63) (7,071.81)
Unallocated corporate assets - 6,708.46
(19,178.84)
Total assets 36,455.24
(26,250.65)
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Investment

Elimination

Electrical Real Others Total
Equipments Estate Activity (Rs. in facs)
Segment Iiabi!ities 658.70 9,489.24 . 424 05 10,571.99
{1.125.70) |- (5,004.06) | (=) (479.58) - (6,609.34)
Unallocated corporate liabilities ' 9,536.47
(10,706.189)
Total liabilities 20,108.46
(17,315.53)
Capital Expenditure — — — — -
B (7:47) (81.31) =) (3.11) (91.89)
Unallocated capital expenditure 5.05
' (106.49)
Total capital expenditure 5.05
{198.38)
Depreciation 44.81 9.50 — 104.96 159.27
j (79.68) (5.63) | (12008) (205.39)
Unallocated Depreciation '23.‘79
. (24.48)
Total Depreciation 183.06
' (220.87)
Non cash expenses other . ‘
“than depreciation — — - 131.74 - 131.74
| - ) )|  (s325) (53.25)
{b) Secondary Segment - Geographical Segments
' ' ' (Rs. Lacs)
-‘Domestic Export Total
Segment revenue by geographical area . ‘
Based on geographical location of customers 9580.21 ° 2582.93 1,263.14
(including net sales, services etc) {2,053.74) (696.13) (2,749.87)
Segment Assets by geographical area . 36,377.97 77.27 36,455.24
" - . (25,849.60) (401.05)  (26,25065)
Capital Expenditure 5.05 — 5.05
(=) (198.38)

(198.38)
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15.

16.

Note: ]
« Corresponding figures in bracket pertains to previous year.

« Segment assets include ail operating assets used by the segment and consist primatily of debtors, -current assets
and fixed assets net of provisions and allowances. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist
principally of creditors and other payables. ltems that relate to the enterprise as a whole or at the corporate level not
attributable to a particular segment are included under “unallocated”. ‘

« The F{e'al Estate segment includes Lease rental income and Development of Housing Projects: !

+ Electrical equipments segment includes manufacturing and sales of lightning arrester, varistor, Secondary surge
arresters,Discharge Counter.“Others” represents income generated from windmill. -

+ During the year the Company has reclassified Varistors from Segment - ‘Others’ to Electrical
Equipment Segment. '
Operating Ieases'

i) The Company's significant leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for premises (residential, office,
efc.). These leasing arrangements, which are non-cancelable range between 11 months and 8 years generally and
are usually renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms. Aggregate lease rentals receivable are’
recognised as Rerit in Scheduie XV. - . ‘ ' -

iiy Other disclosures in respect of Building assets given on operating lease

Buildings : ' . 2008-09 . 2007-08
. (Rs. Lacs) (Rs. Lacs)

Gross block - 275.65 275.46
Accumulated depreciation - 55.70 " 46,19
Depreciation recognized during the year 9.51 ' 8.06
2008-09 2007-08

A _ _ {Rs. Lacs) (Rs. Lacs)

- Lease Rental Receipi for the year ' ' 520.55 343.63
Future minimum lease rentals Receipts not later than one year : 612.49 286.75

later than one year but not later than five years . _ 1,743.35 _ 762.82

i) Other disclosures in respect of assets taken on opetating lease.

The Company has entered into Operating Lease arrangements towards use of office facilities. The minimurﬁ future

payments during non-cancelable period under the foregoing arrangements in the aggregate for each of the following
. period is as follows: <

2008-09 . - 2007-08

{Rs. Lacs) (Rs. Lacs)
Lease rental payments for ihe year 8.60 3.00

Futute minimum lease rentals payments payable
Not later than one year T 12.60 3 3.00
. - ‘ )
\ater than one year but not later than five years ) : o — P

The Company has its own Providait fund trust covering the employees of Eipro International Limited and as the
fund would have to meet any inte'rg'st shortfall, it is to be construed as a defined benefit ptan in terms of recent
Accounting Standards Board (ASB) guidance on implementing AS 15 (Revised 2005) issued by the ICAL. However,
in the absence of guidance note from the Actuarial Society of India, the Company's actuary has expressed his
inability to reliably measure the provident fund liability. Accordingly, the Company has accounted for the same as’ -
a defined contribution plan. ‘ __—

As per the provisions of The Employee's Provident Funds Act, 1952 employees of Elpro Estaie Limited (Formerly known
as Trump Propetties Limited) are not covered under the provisions of the said Act.

During the year the Company declared voluntary retirement scheme (VRS) for its employees at Chinchwad factory.

The total cost of VRS paid amounted to Rs 275.01 lacs. The same would be amortised till March 31, 2010
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17. During the year, the Company has entered into a “Joint development Agreement’ (JDA) with ‘Elpro Estates Limited’
(Formerly known as “Frump Properties Limited'), a Subsidiary Company for the Joint Development of the Commercial
project . In terms of the JDA Provisions the: Company has transferred the Capital Work-In-Progress and the related
liabilities on account of the commercial project to Elpro Estates Limiteq.

18. Pravious year's figures have been shown in brackets and have been'regroupéd wherever necessary to conform to
current year's classification.

. Signatures to Schedules “I” to “XXI”
.. For and on behalf of the Board

Anil Poddar Surbhit Dabriwala
Director ) Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 30, 2009
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as my/our proxy. to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 46th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company to be held on
Tuesday, September 29, 2009 at 11.30 a.m. at Walchand Hirachand Hall, Indian Merchant’s Chamber, Churchgate,
Mumbai - 400 020 and at any adjournment thereof.
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ELPRO INTERNATIONAL LTD.
Registered Office : Nirmal, 17th Floor, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400 021.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

46TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 29, 2009

DPID No. : Client ID No. :

| certify that | am a registered member / Proxy for the registered member of the COmpany.

| hereby record hy presence at the 46th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, September 29, 2009 at
11.30 a.m, at Walchand Hirachand Hall, Indian Merchant's Chamber, Churchgate, Mumbai - 400 020.

Name of Member! Proxy (|n BLOCK Letters) . Slgnature of Membe {/ Proxy

Note : Please complete the attendance slip and hand it over at the ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL
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